

EasyCars 2000 User Manual

Jeal Computer Services Pty Ltd

P.O. BOX 1013, ST MARYS, NSW 1790 AUSTRALIA Reg. office Unit 5/190 Queen St. St Marys N.S.W. 2760 Australia Mobile 0412281158 Fax (02) 9673 4063 Last revised 10.04.2013

PH (02) 9623 6403

Table of Contents

CHAPTER 1 : INTRODUCTION	5
Welcome to EasyCars 2000	5
Legal Requirements	5
Hardware Requirements	6
Conventions used in this manual	6
CHAPTER 2 : INSTALLATION	7
Where do I start?	7
Installing EasyCars 2000	7
Demonstration Data	
Moving around EasyCars 2000	
Exiting from EasyCars 2000	9
CHAPTER 3 : GETTING STARTED	10
Creating a New Database	
Importing Lookup Lists	
Adding to Lookup Lists	12
Setting your defaults	
<u>G</u> ST	
Registration	
Users (Security)	18
Upgrading from the Internet	19
CHAPTER 4 : USING EASYCARS 2000	21
Entering Information	21
Adding Vehicles	
Editing or Adding Additional Data	
Adding Pictures to Vehicles	
Adding Photos to your Cars:	
Adding Trade-ins	
Creating Purchase Orders (PO) (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)	
Paying Purchase Orders/Updating to an Expense	
(Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)	
Transferring Expense Types (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)	
Floorplan Vehicles (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)	
How to put a car on Floorplan	

How to make a curtailment (payment) for a car on Floorplan (Only available to u Easy Cars 2000)	
Adjustments to Floorplan vehicles (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)	35
Searching	26
Searching for Individual Vehicles	
Searching for Multiple Vehicles	
CHAPTER 5 : SELLING VEHICLES	
To a Private Customer or to another Dealer	
Sending Forms to Dealers via Fax	
Entering Monies Received.	
Conselling Color and Durch cons	40
Cancelling Sales and Purchases	
Determining the Action Required Cancelling a Sale	
Cancelling a Purchase	
Adjusting a Sale / Purchase Amount	
CHAPTER 6 : SENDING AND RECEIVING INFORMATION	55
Jeal Computer Services	55
Send Data to Jeal	55
Get Data from Jeal	
Car History	
TO BE COMPLETED	
Advertising	
Setting up for Advertising	
Sending to Advertisers	
EasyCars Car History Report uploads for dealers with a JCS website	
CHAPTER 7 : PRINTING NOTICES AND FORMS	60
CHAPTER 7. PRINTING NOTICES AND FORMIS	
Printing Forms	60
Reprinting Invoices for a Sold Vehicle	61
RTA Disposal Forms	61
RTA Acquisition Forms	
Police Book	
Log of Changes	
Consignment Memorandum Form	
Printing Reports	
(Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000, users with Easy Cars Lite have an	
Report Only)	
Stocktake Report	
Unsold Stock Report	
Acquisitions/General stock lists	
Profit On Sold Stock Report	
Debtors Report Payments Received on Sold Stock	
Salesman's Commission Report	
Salesman's Average Profit Report	
Invoice List	
Floorplan Outstanding Report	
Creditors Outstanding Report	
Floorplan / Creditors Repayments Report	

Matched Debtors / Creditors Report	72
Accrual Basis Report GST Business Activity Statement	72
Cash Basis Report GST Business Activity Statement	
GST Transactions by Stock Number	
Browse GST Transactions	
Expenses / Orders / Warranty Expenses Report	
Warranty Profit	
Incomplete Police Book / Notice Information	
Stock Cards	
(Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)	
Description Cards (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)	
Mailing Lists	80
Toll Forms	81
CHAPTER 8 : BULK SALE AND PURCHASE OPTIONS	83
CHAPTER 8 : BULK SALE AND PURCHASE OPTIONS	
CHAPTER 8 : BULK SALE AND PURCHASE OPTIONS	
CHAPTER 8 : BULK SALE AND PURCHASE OPTIONS	
CHAPTER 8 : BULK SALE AND PURCHASE OPTIONS (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000) Pickups (Quick Acquisitions) Sales/Invoicing Bulk Receipts	83
CHAPTER 8 : BULK SALE AND PURCHASE OPTIONS (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000) Pickups (Quick Acquisitions) Sales/Invoicing Bulk Receipts Viewing Receipts Audit Trail	83 83 83 84 84 85 86
CHAPTER 8 : BULK SALE AND PURCHASE OPTIONS (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000) Pickups (Quick Acquisitions) Sales/Invoicing Bulk Receipts Viewing Receipts Audit Trail Bulk Payments to Creditors	
CHAPTER 8 : BULK SALE AND PURCHASE OPTIONS (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000) Pickups (Quick Acquisitions) Sales/Invoicing Bulk Receipts Viewing Receipts Audit Trail	

CHAPTER 9 : GENERAL INFORMATION AND HINTS	88
Backing Up Your Data	
Telephone Support and Program Maintenance	89
The Telephone Support Numbers	90
Telephone Support via Internet	91
Using Remote Admin	91

Chapter 1

Chapter 1: Introduction

Welcome to EasyCars 2000

EasyCars was designed specifically to reduce the time consumed by a dealer handling paperwork, including most government forms as well as acquisitions, disposals, Car History and Advertising etc. It also provides a comprehensive record of all incoming and outgoing vehicles. The police book records are automatically updated as each vehicle is purchased or sold. The entire paperwork routine necessary when a vehicle is sold by retail sale or wholesaled from one yard to another is automated.

In the case of routine **wholesale purchases and/or sales**, a dealer information bank (created by you) removes the need to key in each dealer's details - all necessary information is automatically entered, thereby releasing you from repetitive typing. A complete set of information relating to any dealer of your choice is typed onto the disposal screen, acquisition screen, form 7, police book, new vehicle record etc. **with only two or three keystrokes**.

A further time saving is achieved when a client's details are **<u>automatically</u>** copied from the sold vehicle to his trade-in, thus avoiding double entry of information and reducing the possibility of errors.

Legal Requirements

The Commissioner for the Department of Fair Trading requires, amongst other things, that:

1. "A procedure for 'backup' to the system be implemented and carried out at least on a weekly basis. The backup procedure must enable the restoration of information following a computer failure. A **second** 'backup' copy file of information must be stored **off the premises** and made available to an authorised person on demand."

2. "All information must be able to be accessed by terminal screen and hard copy on immediate request by an authorised person" (Our emphasis).

THIS MEANS THAT, DURING BUSINESS HOURS, THERE MUST ALWAYS BE SOMEONE ON YOUR PREMISES WHO KNOWS HOW TO PRINT A "POLICE BOOK UPDATE" FROM EASYCARS, OTHERWISE YOU ARE NOT COMPLYING WITH REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE MOTOR DEALERS ACT.

It is, in any case, in your own best interests to ensure that more than one person knows how to use the computer to print reports and update the information. Information must be kept up-to-date even when your regular computer operator is away sick or on holidays.

3. The "LOG OF CHANGES" must be printed at least weekly.

Hardware Requirements

You will require a Windows XP, Vista, or Windows 7 Computer. EasyCars is not supported on Apple. A minimum requirement of RAM is 2GB. 32 Bit is sufficient.

Conventions used in this manual

- ⇒ The symbols < and > are used to indicate a single keystroke. For example <F10> means you should tap the function key at the top of the keyboard marked F10 (not the keys F then 1 then 0). Another example is <Page Down>, which refers to the key with the words Page Down written on it.
- ⇒ We will sometimes tell you to use two keys at the same time like this: <Alt> + <Q>. This means hold down the first key (the Alt key); while holding it down, tap the second key (Q), and then release the first key. Another example could be <Ctrl> + <End> which means hold down the Ctrl key, tap the End key, then release the first key. Sounds difficult? No way!
- \Rightarrow When we refer to selecting from the options displayed as choices in a menu, the option to be selected will be shown underlined like this: <u>C</u>hange.

Chapter

Chapter 2: Installation

Where do I start?

JCS will normally organise a time with you to do your initial setup, to ensure it is done correctly. Please contact our office to organise a time to suit you. 02 9623 6403

Before you can start using EasyCars 2000, it will need to be installed onto your hard disk. Depending on your particular setup, you will need to follow some or all of the steps outlined below.

Installing EasyCars 2000

Step 1 – Insert the EasyCars 2000 compact disk into the CD drive and wait 15 seconds or so for the following menu to display.







Step 3 – A prompt will ask you to close other programs that may be running on your computer.

If all other programs are closed, select <u>Next</u>.

Step 4 – If you agree to the terms and conditions outlined in the license agreement select <u>Yes</u>. If you do not agree to these terms select <u>No</u> and you will not proceed any further with the installation of EasyCars 2000.

ielect Destination Location Where should EasyCars 2000 be installed?	
Setup will install EasyCars 2000 into the following folder. To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder, click Browse. ONProgram Files/EasyCars	If you are familiar with directories then you may wish to
	change the installation directory however we do not advise this. Except if you have Windows Vista. The directory must be
At least 78.2 MB of free disk space is required.	C:\Users\Public\EasyCars

Step 5 – A prompt will ask you to install EasyCars 2000 to the destination folder C:\Program Files\EasyCars\ If this is acceptable to you, select <u>Next</u>. If you use Windows Vista or Windows 7, we suggest using C:\Users\Public\EasyCars\

Step 6 – You will now be asked which additional tasks you would like to be performed during the installation. Leave the Create a desktop icon ticked and an icon will be placed on your desktop to allow easy access to EasyCars 2000. The "Create a Quick Launch" tick box will add a shortcut to EasyCars 2000 in the Quick-Launch Toolbar.

Select Additional Tasks		
Which additional tasks should be	e performed?	Ċ
Select the additional tasks you v 2000, then click Next.	vould like Setup to perform while in	stalling EasyCars
Additional icons:		
Create a desktop icon		

Step 7 – Click Install to complete the installation

Step 8 - Click Finish to exit the Setup.

Demonstration Data

You will find a set of demonstration data will be installed ready for you to experiment with. It will be in the directory you installed to. When starting EasyCars for the first time you have the option to use demo data. At this point in time your program will be in Demonstration Mode. Use the Demonstration data in conjunction with the user's manual to become familiar with EasyCars.

Moving around EasyCars 2000

There are several ways in which you can move through the screens, windows and menu options in EasyCars.

To select a menu option from the tool bar either: -

- Point and click with your mouse, or
- You can select the <ALT> key and the letter that is underlined for the option you want to select. For example to select the menu option <u>File</u> would be <ALT F>.

To move through fields on the screen you can either: -

- Point and click with your mouse, or
- Use the <Tab> key to move to the next field. If you have to move in a backwards direction use <Shift> + <Tab> key together.

Using the Navigator Window as a Main Menu: -

- If you want to use the Navigator window you will have to open it by selecting the <u>View menu option</u>, then selecting <u>Navigator Window</u>.
- Once the Navigator window is displayed just click on the task you wish to perform.
- To Close the Navigator window select the View menu option, then selecting Navigator Window.

Exiting from EasyCars 2000

NEVER EXIT FROM EASYCARS BY SWITCHING OFF OR RESETTING THE COMPUTER!

Leave the program by selecting **<u>File</u>** then **Exit** on the main menu.



Chapter

3

Chapter 3 : Getting Started

When EasyCars 2000 has been installed on your Hard Drive, it is time to get it ready for use. The following are a few steps that show you how to set up EasyCars for your individual use.

EasyCars installation will create a desktop icon or a quick start icon, use either to start the application

(When you run EasyCars for the first time, it will display these windows/screens. Answer 'Yes, I want to use Glasses' if you have support)

As a reminder, JCS Support Staff should do this for you to ensure everything is setup correctly

Creating a New Database

Step 1 – From the <u>File</u> menu, select Close.

File	Data Entry	Notices/Forms	Reports	JCSEVI	V Setup
	New		Ct	rl+N	
E	Open		Ct	rl+0	0
	Close		Ct	rl+C	lerBy
-	Import				_
	Export				Costin
	REVS check				Options
	Direct Sales Up	pdate			
	Drive Grey Imp	ports			

Step 2 – From the File menu, select New.

ge Ea	asyCars 2000	v4.02.155						
File	Data Entry	Notices/Forms	Reports	JCSEV	N Setup	Update	View	W
	New		Ct	rl+N	1	1 23	1	
	Open		Ct	rl+0	w PO	Prev P	0s	Da
	Close		Ct	rl+C				

A box asking what you want to do will appear. Select "Start using EasyCars".

• Click Continue.

Start using EasyCars	
O View Demonstration Data	for <u>U</u> sed Vehicles only
 View Demonstration Data with Multiple Yards 	for <u>N</u> ew and Used Vehicles
C View Demonstration Data	for <u>L</u> ite version
View Demonstration Data What State are you in?	

The "Save new data file as" window will be displayed.

Step 3 – In the *File <u>n</u>ame* field, type a name for the new database that you wish to create, for example: "Jeal Stock". This is the name of your database and should be remembered, as this is the file that should be backed up.

Save new data file	15			_			×
00 · 🖉 · Co	mput	er 🕨 OS (C:)	Program Files	EasyCars +	+ + ₇ s	earch	م
🐚 Organize 👻 🏭	Views	👻 🚺 Ne	w Folder				0
Favorite Links Documents Decktop Decktop Decktop Peckets Pictures Pictures Decently Changed Searches Public		Name Demo P Docs Templa Glasses		Туре	Size DemoData DW DemoData newSSS		
Folders	^						
File <u>n</u> ame: Save as <u>t</u> ype:		ars Access D	sta Files (*.mdb)				•
Hide Folders						Save	Cancel

Step 4 – Click Save.

• A dialog box will tell you that your new database has been created.

Step 5 – Click Ok.

• TheImport message box is displayed.

mport				×
?	Do you want to data?	import informa	tion from an existing set o	f EasyCars

If you do not wish to Import data select <u>N</u>o. If you do want to import data to be used in the lookup lists follow the instructions below.

Importing Lookup Lists

After you have created a new database using the steps outlined above, EasyCars 2000 will ask you if you want to **import** information such as lookup lists and other data into your new database. The information in our demonstration data file is a good starting point to creating your own database. To import this information, follow the steps outlined.

After you have created your new database, the Import dialog box will be displayed.

Step 1 – Click on <u>Yes</u> to import from an existing set of EasyCars data.



The "Import from existing EasyCars data" window will be displayed.

Step 2 – Click on the file **DemoData.mdb** so that it appears in the *File <u>n</u>ame* field.

Step 3 – Click <u>Open</u>.

The "Import" box will be displayed with some lookup lists selected.

• Tick or untick the options as required by clicking on the boxes.

Step 4 – Click Import.

After the importing process has been completed, the Import box will change slightly.

Step 5 – Click <u>*Close*</u> to complete the process.

You can view, edit, delete and add to lookup lists at any time. To do this you can either: -

- Select the **Data Entry** menu option, and then select **Lookup Lists**. Select the list you wish to update.
- While in a Stock Screen you can make entries on-the-fly. This is done when making an entry on a field that draws from the lists. If the entry you are making is not already in the list you will be prompted to make this a permanent entry.

Adding to Lookup Lists

To add to any of the lookup lists you can do this in 2 ways:

1. On the fly

When entering details for a vehicle and you enter data that would normally be stored in a lookup list, if that data is not already stored in the appropriate lookup list you will be asked if you would like to add it. If you answer <u>Yes</u> it will be added to the appropriate list and can be used again by selecting it from the list from the screen you are working on. If you answer <u>No</u> the data will be used for this entry only.

2. Adding, editing or deleting from the list directly

From the Data Entry menu, select Lookup Lists then the list you wish to add/edit or delete information.

O All data files	
O Current Stock	
 Selected lookup tables 	
Groups - 5 records a	dded
Body types - 25 reco	rds added
Makes and Models -	3406 records added
Colours - 22 records	added
Contractors	
Salesmen	
Dealers	
Finance companies	
🔲 Mailing list	
✓ Invoice messages - 1	records added
Queries - 1 records a	dded

Add, edit or delete information as required.

Setting your defaults

The option **Setup** menu is used to set your defaults for EasyCars. It is found on the toolbar at the top of the screen.



chase Orders

This menu is used to: -

- Set default Options.
- Set the GST Rate.
- Complete the Registration of the program (if manually entering) and add your Company Logo.
- Retrieve Registration over the Internet.
- Change the Default Data Entry Dates.
- View the Link and Link History is using EasyCash Professional in conjunction with EasyCars.
- Create Users and Passwords.

Options

Step 1 – From the Setup menu, select Options.



chase Orders

The "Options" screen will be displayed with the General tab available for entry.

Clients			
Glasses	Web pages	Internet) Other
ieneral L	Display	Stock Entry	Selling
	ay the Stock window a tart the EasyCars progr		e 🗹
Auto	matic daily safety backu	ιp	
Auto	matic weekly safety bad	:kup	
Auto	matic monthly safety ba	ckup	
Shov	v print dialog before prir	ting reports	V
Numt	per of Locks per File:	200	00 +
- When addin	g new items to look	up lists from Stoc	screen, use:
ALL UPF	ER CASE		0
Proper C	ase (First Letter Of Eacl	n Word Is Upper Cas	e) O
None - Ll	EaVe iT exActly AS ityl	Pe iT	٥

- If you would like to Display the Stock screen each time you start EasyCars check the box.
- We suggest that all *Backup options* be selected. These backup options <u>do not</u> replace external backups made to a USB or zip disk. External backups to USB or zip disk are critical and MUST be carried out routinely.
- If you wish to check the printer to be used or amend the pages to be printed select the *Show Print Dialog* box.
- When adding to *Lookup Lists*, we suggest that the lookup lists always use UPPERCASE.

Step 2 – Select the Display tab.

- If you would like to be warned if you are entering Duplicate Registration Numbers check the box.
- If you would like to be warned if you have entered a vehicle that was not acquired with a *Tax Invoice*, check the box. This warning will be displayed each time you edit a vehicle without a tax invoice.
- Click on the default vehicle type and select Used.
- If not operating in QLD, make sure the Rego Label/Check Digit isn't checked.

Step 3 – Select the Stock Entry tab.

- If you would like to Automatically Transfer Acquisition Cost to Creditors tick the box. This will create a record on the Creditor/Payments tab for the amount you have entered in the Consideration Given (how much you paid for the vehicle) for each vehicle you acquire.
- If you would like to maintain a mailing list of customers who have purchased vehicles from you, tick Automatically transfer purchaser details to mailing list.
- If you want to add *Default Lot/Load Fund Amount* to the costing tab for every vehicle you acquire enter the amount here.
- If you want to add *Default Warranty Allowance* to the costing tab for every vehicle you acquire enter the amount here.

- Select when you want to *Default REVS Check*. Vehicles will be added to the REVS Check screen based on your selection.
- Determine how you would like Consignments Transfer to Creditors.
- Add any *Default expense(s)* that will be added to all vehicles you acquire. If using EasyCash
 Professional these Default expenses are <u>NOT</u> transferred to EasyCash Pro.

The options set here can be changed at any time, however there are no adjustments made to vehicles already in stock.

For example, if you change the amount of the default Warranty Allowance, any vehicles entered into stock prior to the change will have the old amount. Any vehicles entered into stock after the change will have the new amount.

Step 5 – Select the Glasses tab.

- Make sure the Glasses guide is used for data entry by ticking this box.
- Make the Glasses matches 15 before showing the select NVIC screen for best performance when using the Glasses information service.

Step 6 – Select the Internet tab.

• The information that is already entered here is to allow you to send your data to Jeal Computer Services and should not be changed unless instructed to do so by Jeal Computer Services.

Step 5 – Click on <u>Apply</u>.

Step 6 – Click on <u>*O*</u>*k*.

<u>G</u>ST

Step 1 – From the <u>Setup</u> menu, select GST.

This option allows you to change the GST Tax rate in accordance with Government guidelines. At the time of writing, this was 10%.

<u>Note</u>: For information about GST compliance within this program see the GST Help section which can be found under the Help menu.

Step 2 – Click on <u>Apply</u>.

Step 3 – Click on Ok.

Registration

When convenient, contact Jeal Computer Services Pty Ltd. on (02) 9623 6403 for your registration number. You will be issued with a password. Click on the **Setup** menu, and select **Retrieve Registration from Jeal**. You will get a firewall prompt, click continue. Enter the password and click ok. If you don't have access to the Internet you will need to follow these steps:

Step 1 – From the Setup menu, select Registration.

🛞 EasyCars 2000 v4.02.155: Demonstration Copy Only - No Client Code	
File Data Entry Notices/Forms Reports JCSEVN Setup Update View Window	Help
SeasyCash Stock Reports New GST	
Navigator Registration	
What do you want to do today? Retrieve Registration Information	on from Jeal
Enter or view information Change Data Entry Dates	
Benter Stock details Send sales and/or receive purchases for Direc Link to EasyCash Professional	
Check vehicles with REVS, or enter REVS resi	
Send vehicle details to Trading Post TraderNet	
EasyCars User Registration	X
Yard: 1 of 1 Yard Code:	The "EasyCars User Registration" screen will be
User Name: Demonstration Copy Only	displayed.
Address:	The Name and address details once entered
Billing Address (**):	here will be used to print on your forms and invoices.
City (**):	They MUST match your Dealers License details.
Telephone (**): Fax (**):	
ABN (- GST Branch ACN:	Once you have installed a registration
Dealer Licence: Default state (**): Notices e	number you can start entering your own set of data.
Organisation	, , ,
Code/Premises No.	Note: Some functions of this program are not available
(Direct Dealer to Dealer sales updates are available free to registe	unless you have obtained a Pre-Paid Support
with current pre-paid support)	
New cars Module This Yard is Used Only	Registration Number . Please contact Jeal support staff
Restricted Licence Sales Limit per calendar month (0 for unrestriced	n of for more information.
Logo Location (**):	
Add Deactivate Previous	Next
Registration Date: 07-09-2009 Pre-Paid Support	
Number:	0
<u>R</u> egister <u>C</u> ancel	
(***) These items can be changed without affecting the Registration Number	Adding your Company Logo
	Step 1 – In the <i>Registration</i> screen, click on the button
at the and of the lage location field	
at the end of the <i>Logo Location</i> field.	
Logo Location (**):	

The "Select logo image" window will be displayed.

🖉 🖓 📳 🕨 Public 🕨	EanyCars +			• +y 5	narch.	,
🐚 Organize 🔹 🏭 Views	• No	i felder	_	_	_	
Facutor States Decoments Decome	Name Rochups Demotau Demotau TH Upload web		Туре 07-5ер-2005 у	Siz Drano Pictures Dous Dous Templates Disprofes		
Rie gane.	1			•	Poture Files ("be	Cancel

Step 2 – Use the *Look in field* to select the correct drive and folder containing your logo. <u>Note</u>: The picture must be of file type bmp, gif, jpg or wmf.

Step 3 – Click on the picture filename.

Step 4 – Click <u>Open</u>. The picture should now appear in the *Registration* screen.

Step 5 – Click <u>Register</u> in the Registration screen.

Now the options in the **Sell screen, Finance screen** and **Vehicle Description Cards** can be ticked to include your Company Logo.

Once a successful registration number is entered, the registration details displayed in some fields **CANNOT** be changed unless a new registration number is also entered. Changing those fields without entering a newly issued registration number will convert the program back to a demonstration program. The only fields that can be changed without contacting Jeal Computer Services are telephone or fax numbers.

<u>Note</u>: A new registration number to correspond with any new registration details will only be issued after payment of a new license fee, except in the case of "renewable" registrations.

Users (Security)

Creating a Master Password

To protect your data, a facility has been installed so that passwords can be used to restrict access to authorised personnel only. To utilise this facility, the <u>first time</u> that you access the **Users** function under the <u>Setup</u> menu, you will be asked to enter a 'Master Password' where the following dialog box will be displayed.

Step 1 – From the Setup menu, select Users.

Enter User Password	X
Name: Master Account Enter new master password: Enter the same password again:	Qk

The "Enter Users Password" box will be displayed.

- Choose a name, type the same password in both boxes and click on the <u>Ok</u> button.
- The master password always has all access rights enabled; you cannot change the settings for the master password.

<u>NOTE</u>: IT IS VERY IMPORTANT THAT YOU REMEMBER YOUR MASTER PASSWORD BECAUSE YOU WILL BE ASKED TO ENTER IT EVERY TIME YOU START EASYCARS 2000.

Adding Users



• Enter a new password then type again to verify.

Step 3 – Click <u>Ok</u>.

Step 4 – Select the functions/screens this user can access.

- If this user can access all screens select Allow <u>all</u> button. This will tick all boxes.
- If this user can access most screens select Allow most button. This will tick all boxes.
- If this user can access some screens select Allow some button. This will tick some boxes.
- If you are not happy with any of these suggested setting select *Allow none* and make your own selections by clicking boxes along side the screen you wish this user to access.

Step 5 – Click <u>*Ok*</u>.

Editing Users Access Rights

Step 1 – From the "Users" screen select the user you wish to change.

• Make the changes as per the instructions above.

Step 2 – Click <u>O</u>k.

Changing User Passwords

Step 1 – From the Setup menu, select Users.

The "Users" screen will be displayed.

• Select the User you wish to change.

Step 2 – From the Users menu, select Change password.

The "Enter User Password" dialog box will be displayed.

Step 3 – Enter the account name you want to change and then enter the new password in both boxes and click on the <u>*Ok*</u> button.

Deleting Users

Step 1 – From the "Users" screen select the user you wish to delete.

Step 2 - From the "Users" menu, select Delete.

The *Delete* dialog box will be displayed.

Step 3 – Click Yes to delete the user.

Upgrading from the Internet

<u>Note</u>: This option is only available if you have a **Pre-Paid Support Number**. See Chapter 3 – "**Registration**" or contact Jeal support staff.

Step 1 – Connect to the Internet, preferably <u>without</u> running your web browser (Internet Explorer or Netscape etc.).

Step 2 – Start EasyCars 2000.

Step 3 – From the Update menu, select Check for an Update.

S EasyCash	Stock	- Contract C	New PO	р	Check for a Install Upda				REVS	Movertising	JCSEVN Sea
Add ve	hicle	Edit	Order	€¥	Search	¢	Eind	>	Query	Bro	wse
Debtor/receipts Vehicle			Costing Options			Expenses Memo				Orders Acquisition	
						Stock	Type Ca			•	
	Stock Number	289			1	Entry No	umber 28	9			
	Registration No	UNREC	ì		Rego Lab	el/ Check	< Digit				



A "Checking for an update" dialog box will be displayed.

	e are updates ready fo Id you like to downlo	
•		

• Select <u>Yes</u> to continue.

The download will now begin.

Do you wish to install now?	Download Comp	lete
	bo you man to n	install now.
		istan now.



If you select No, and do not specify otherwise the new exe file will be saved to the directory your data stored in a folder named *Upgrades*.

* If using Dial-up Internet, remember to disconnect. *

<u>Note</u>: If you are running EasyCars on a Network, each computer in that network MUST be running the same version at all times. So don't forget to upgrade ALL machines. Simply go to the menu *Update*, and then select *Install from network*.

Chapter



Chapter 4: Using EasyCars 2000

When you have finished setting up EasyCars 2000, it is time to start using the program. EasyCars 2000 allows you to enter information, search for specific information, send and receive information and print out relevant information.

Entering Information

Adding Vehicles

To add a vehicle into the EasyCars database, you need to get to the Stock screen.

Step 1 – Click on the **Data Entry** menu and then click **Stock**.



The Stock screen will be displayed.

Step 2 – Click on the <u>Add vehicle</u> button or press <Alt> + <A>.

asyCars 2000 v4.02.155: Der nstration Copy Only - No Cli nt Code - [Stock: By Stock Nu Data Entry File Notices/F CSEVN Updat 8 New PO Prev POs Date range Update Stock S EasyCash Reports Add vehicle Edit Debtor/receipts Costing Expense Memo Vehicle Options

The *Stock* screen will change to *Edit* mode to allow data entry.

All fields that are highlighted in green are mandatory (they must be filled in before a Form can be printed for display in the window of a vehicle). It is best to enter as much accurate information as possible now. You can however go back and add more details or make changes at a later date.

Press the **<Tab>** button to move to each of the fields.

Pressing the **<F2>** function key will enter today's date in the date fields or can duplicate information where appropriate.

h Stoc	Reports	New PO P	3 Inter POs	Date range	Updat	REVS	Advertising	2	S Quote						
d vehicle	Edit	OrderBy	Sear		Eind	Ouery	Brown	1.77	Enevious	Next	н	Newlised		Status	In St
Debtorired	eipts	Costing		1		inses	T	Orders	1	Warranty expense	-	Notices		Imoices	-
Vehicle		Options		T	Merr	10	Acq	uisition	1	Creditor/payments	Ĩ	Floorplan	1	Disposal	
	Iterat		_												
	New/Used Used														
~	ock Number 1		1	Entry Nu	1		-		NVIC code	POP		Gr		-	
50	ock number			Entry Nu	mee .				INVIL CODE		_	60	ND L		
Be	jutation No AG65H	Y	Be	ego Label/ Check	Digit				Registration Expiry	07-09-2009	11	Registration S	alle NSW	-	
											*		Lun		
	Make WITSU	ISHI	-		Vodel TRI	TON	-		Model Year	1995	-	ModelVar	and MX	-	
	Series MJ		•		Body UTI	UTY	*		Colour				rim .	•	
	Engine No								VIN/Chassis No						
	_											Other Informa	im [_	
	Built Date			Compé	kance /				Dyinders	4	•				
	ngine Type CARB		-	Engine Cap	pacity 255		-		Engine Size	2.6	-		In 5 SP MANUAL	-	
1	ingne (jpe_chine		-		-				Light Sta			THE SOULS			
	Doors	-	0 +												
			-		-										
	Drive Train					Unleaded Fuel		Diesel Fu	iel	LPG Fuel		Special	Prestige	d	
	Odometer		0 +	Dist	lance		0 +								
	I No o	Inmeter							Form Type			Form	No		
		automenen			⊙ K	lm O Mil	es				-				
	🗹 Trac	ng Stock		Pi	ickup				Previous Rego				The Professio	nal Car Dealer	
	Com	nerciel/exempt			1										
		ine or more													
		na n nord											L		
		y: 1 Rego No: AG65H												NewUood	ATVe

- The cursor will initially be in the *Registration* field. Enter the Registration Number of the vehicle you are entering into stock. <Tab>
- If you are a Dealer in QLD enter the check digit. <Tab>
- Enter the date on which the Registration Expires. <Tab>
- Enter the State in which the vehicle is registered. <Tab>
- Groups can be used to help you group vehicles together for reporting purposes. If you want to use this enter a Group <Tab>
- Enter the Built Date of the vehicle. <Tab>
- If the *Compliance* date is the same as the built date you can press <F2> and the date will be entered for you. If it is different you will have to enter this in now. <Tab>
- Other can be used to record things such as the Radio PIN number etc. If in VIC, WA or SA this field with be entitled Year First Registered. <Tab>
- Enter the Engine Number. <Tab>
- Enter the VIN/Chassis Number. If this number is completely or partially the same as the engine number you can use <F2> to duplicate it here. For example if you were entering the details for a Ford select <F2> to duplicate the engine number, then select the <Home> key which will place the cursor at the beginning of the field and type 6FPAAA. <Tab>
- The make/model/body/colour and trim of the vehicle can be selected from the Lookup List by selecting the at the end of each of the fields or by typing it in. If not already in the list you can add

it at this point. If sufficient information is entered, the glasses database if used will show a list of possible matches to select which may fill in more information. <Tab>

- Tick the Commercial/exempt box if the vehicle you are entering falls into this category otherwise leave it blank. <Tab>
- Tick the 2 Tonne or more box if the vehicle you are entering falls into this category otherwise leave it blank. <Tab>
- The *Engine and Transmission* fields can be entered if required. These fields will be displayed on the Stock Cards and other reports. <Tab>
- Trading Stock should always be ticked. If this is removed you will not get your GST credits when sold.
 <Tab>
- Enter the figure that is currently displayed on the vehicles Odometer. <Tab>
- Only tick No odometer if this is the case. For example trail bike, caravan or wreck. <Tab>
- Enter the *Distance Travelled*. If this is the same as the odometer press <F2>. The distance travelled is used when the odometer is not a true record of the distance travelled eg: Odometer replaced etc.
 <Tab>
- Select if the odometer/distance travelled is Klm or Miles.
- EasyCars automatically updates the *Form Type* and *Form No*. When forms are printed through EasyCars. This information is stored in your Police Book. Therefore if you had an existing handwritten form on the vehicle the type and number would be entered here. <Tab>
- The Description field allows you to enter any descriptive text. This text can also be displayed on reports. <Tab>
- Up to 2 *Previous Vehicle Registration* numbers can be entered here if necessary.

Step 3 – When all details have been entered, click on the **Options** tab or press the **<Page Down>** key to display the *Options* screen.

- If used, the Glasses database will have a list of standard extras that come with the specific car. To add to the Glass's Optional Extras, right click on that area and click on <u>Add Extras</u>, select the desired extras and click <u>Add Selected</u>.
- If you want this vehicle to be included when sending vehicles to your web page created by EasyWeb, tick this box.
- If you want this vehicle to be included when sending vehicles to your advertising site, check this box.
- If a REVS check has been performed select the time it was done either on Acquisition or Disposal (When you sell the car).
- If a REVS check hasn't been done, select none. If the REVS result is Unknown, passed or failed, select the respective result, otherwise select not done.
- If the REVS check has been done enter the certificate number, Certificate date and REVS batch, if applicable.
- If the vehicle has been rebuilt after a REVS check, tick the *REVS Writeoff* box.
- If desired, add a description in the *Description* box. This will be shown on advertising sites if advertising this vehicle.

Step 4 – When all details have been entered, click on the **Acquisition** tab or press the **<Page Down>** key to display the *Acquisition* tab.

- Enter the Date on which you acquired the vehicle. Note that the date shown will be today's date. This can be changed by typing over it or using the + or (plus or minus) at the end of the field, or the + or keys on your keyboard located on the number pad, or alternatively the drop down will bring up a calender and you can select the date on here. <Tab>
- Enter how you acquired this vehicle, purchase, or consignment.
 <u>Note</u>: Only enter T (Trade-in) if you have not entered this vehicle during the sale of another. For example T could be used for entering trades on hand at the time of implementing EasyCars. For more detailed information on entering Trade-ins, see Chapter 5 "Selling Vehicles". <Tab>
- Leave the tick in the *Print Acquisition Rego* to have this vehicle added to the list of vehicle to be transferred. For more information on printing acquisition transfers, see Chapter 7 – "Printing Notices and Forms". <Tab>
- Enter the *Trust Account Number* and *Type of Consignment* if displayed (will only be available if How Acquired is C). <Tab>
- If the Dealer you purchased the vehicle from has organised floorplan on your behalf, tick the Floorplan by Vendor box. See the section on Floorplan to complete the floorplan details. The floorplan screen will automatically be displayed once this vehicle is saved.
- Enter the *Name* and *Address* details of the person or company you acquired the vehicle from. <u>Note</u>: if it was <u>a company</u> do <u>not use the First Name field</u>. You can select dealers from the lookup list.
- IMPORTANT NOTE:
- Select the option that defines the tax status of how the vehicle was purchased. The default will be Awaiting Tax Invoice, but should be changed to one of the following:

-	Cancel												
Debtor/receipts Vehicle		Costing	Expensi Memo		Orders		Warranty expense Creditor/payments		Notices Floorplan	γI	Invoi Dispos		Refresh
	Date Ordered	2	Ordered V	shicle	Date Acqu	ired		Floor	lan Bailed by ve	ndor			3
Ex	pected Delivery Date	1			How Acqu	ired		Bailed by vendor's	eans the perion you	are baying kom is ay be	anising Rooplan i half to pay for the	20.0024	Transfer
Ма	nulacturer Reference				Trust.	A/c							Disposal
Transfer	Fee Cheque Number				Transfer Fee Cheque D	ale		Printe	cquisition rego tr	anster		¥	Constant Designed Constant Designed Des
- Acquired from:												_	Floorplan
First Name													Proposel
Last/Company					-								B Cards
Address				•						-			Cal
Drivers Licence	•	Exp		Dealer Licence				Drivers Licence		Екр			Moc
ABN			* Phone						Phone			*	Inspect
Fax			Mabile			_			Mobile				
Email									_				
	O Tax Inv Provided		Awaiting Tax Inv	O No I	C O Non-	registered		Tar Inv. Royd		No			
- Trade-ins								L					
Trade in	on Stock 1		Trade-in on St	ick 2	•				Acquisition	Salesman L		-	
											New/	thed	Al Vehicles
ogram Files/EasyCars/Jeal Stock i		EasyCars Manual VI		Ender	100 v4.02	e Helpdesk	Clients 1.01.048	- [C EasyC	rs 2000 v4.02	_		ep-2009 1.02	
	Drovid	ad mus	t ha ch	ockod if	you bay	in ro	- hovior		nvoic	- CST	inni	ite er	odite
v Invoico					•		Leiveu			2. 031	mpt		euits
					•								
n be clair		x must		•				k invoid	e but	are av	vaitir	ng this	5. <u>NOTE</u> :
n be clair vaiting Ta				hin 78 c	lavs of n	urcha	ise.						
n be clair vaiting Ta		Tax Inv	oice wit	1111 20 0	iays of p	arcine							
x Invoice n be clair vaiting Ta u MUST r o ITC must	eceive a							ate of C	% tha	t is GS	T fre	e, e.g.	.:

- Complete additional name and address details if the vehicle was registered in joint names. <Tab>
- Enter the *Salesman* who acquired the vehicle. This information can be used to produce reports for commission etc. <Tab>
- If you have paid for the rego transfer you can enter the cheque number and the date paid here.
 <Tab>
- If this vehicle was used as a trade-in on a vehicle that was purchased; select the stock number from the list.

Step 5 – When all the details have been filled in, click on the **Costing** tab or press the **Page Down>** key to display the *Costing* tab.

The Costing tab is divided into parts Estimates and Actual Costs.

The left-hand side of the tab contains estimates, while the right hand side are the actual figures. You are required to enter values into both areas to be able to produce forms.

If unticked, GST details	EggCass 2009 4422 135 The Professional Car Dealer - Client Code 1490 - User Master Account - Diack By Stock N File Data Entry Nation/Formu Reports XSENN Setup - Update View Window Help Stock - Data Entry - Stock By Stock N - Diack Stock - Stock - Diack		
for totals	BryCarh Stock Reports New PO Prev POS Date range Dipduts Rdv Save Cancel	IG Adverbing ICSDM Search Quste:	
	Vehicle Options Memo	Acquisition Creditor/payments Floorplan Disposal	
only will be	Debton/receipts Costing Expenses	Orders Warranty expense Notices Invoices	
displayed	☐ Show GST details	Including GST GST Ex GST Acq GST Rate	- Million -
	<pre>/</pre>	aderation Given \$0.00 a	Transfer
	Estimates Cost price \$10.00	AV/VO v	
		Net Sup Price \$0.00 Lot Load Fund \$0.00	
		War Allowarce 00.00 -	Picture law
		Total Expenses \$10.00	500 Propriet
		Tetal Orden \$1.00	Plant
	E simulad total cost \$0.00	Total Cost \$0.00 \$0.00	3p Curte
Estimates	Advertised Selling Price 10.00	Stiling Nite \$100 000 2	Automatically updated by the Expenses and Orders screens
Only	Estimated profit inc GST \$80.00	Discout	Automatically updated
		Methet Value 80.00 .	by the Expenses and
		Edma 91.00	Orders screens
		Total Sale \$0.00 \$0.00	
	Estimated GST kabity \$8.00		
		Statistical Control Statistical Control Wholesale Profit on Sole \$0.00 <td></td>	
)	
	a	NewVised	AS Venicles
	Cliffogen Filer/EaryCars Ved Stock.mds	Not updated 075m2009 15	9 PM
		until the vehicle	
		is SOLD	

- Enter the amount you paid for the vehicle, or the amount you gave as the trade-in equity in the Consideration Given field. This amount will be transferred to the Creditor/Payments tab. <Tab>
- If the vehicle was a trade-in enter the difference between the equity given to the customer and what the vehicle is actually worth. This is the *Overallowance* amount. Any amount entered here will reduce the total cost of the vehicle but not affect GST. <Tab>
- The *Market Value* will default to the same value as the consideration given. This value will appear on the RTA transfer form, and can be changed if needed. <Tab>
- If an amount was not automatically defaulted into the *Lot Load Fund* it can be added now. It can also be deleted if not required on the vehicle. Any amount entered here is taken off the profit of the vehicle when sold and not taken into consideration when GST calculations are made. <Tab>
- Enter the value of the Warr Allowance applicable. <Tab>
- You can estimate the Total Expenses for the vehicle and enter this here. <Tab>
- The *Estimated Selling Price* must be entered before a form can be printed for display in the window of a vehicle. This will allow an estimated profit on sale figure to be calculated. <Tab>

- The Estimated Profit on Sale figure is now displayed. If you were aiming for a particular profit on this vehicle you can enter the preferred profit, the estimated selling price will be adjusted accordingly.
 <Tab>
- The *Market Value* on disposal, if known, can be entered at this time and may be displayed on the RTA disposal. <Tab>
- The Fire Sale Value is used as an estimate that can be used for reporting purposes only. <Tab>

Step 8 – Click on the Save button or press <Alt> + <S>. This will now save the vehicle into stock.

Note: The next available stock number will be automatically used for this vehicle.

Editing or Adding Additional Data

Now that the vehicle has been entered into stock if you need to enter additional information or change what you have entered you will have to **Edit** the vehicle. In some cases you may even have to cancel the purchase and or the sale to allow you to make changes. This would be so if you have acquired a vehicle that had a Tax Invoice and you now have to amend the Consideration Given, as you would have already received Input Tax Credits for the purchase. For more on this see Chapter 5 – **"Cancelling Sales and Purchase"**.

- Locate the vehicle you wish to amend.
- Select the appropriate tab.
- Select <u>E</u>dit.
- Make the changes required then select <u>Save</u>. If you do not want to save the changes you have made select <u>Cancel</u>.

Some of the data you may wish to add to your vehicle would be found in the tabs Expenses, Orders and Creditor Payments.

The Expenses tab:

<u>Note</u>: Orders and Expenses will be transferred to EasyCash Pro only if they are added by creating a Purchase Order.

Vehicle Debtor/receipts	Options Costing	Memo Expenses	Acquisition Orders	Creditor/payments Warranty expense	Floorplan Notices	Disposal
			Expenses			
Add	Edit Delete	Search	Betresh	Eransler Save Layout	Get Saved	GetDelault
PO Date F	Paid To Amount in	c Tax BA GST Amount	ex Date Paid GST Reference	Description	•	

• Click on the *Add* button.

The Add Expense window will be displayed.

ave <u>C</u> ancel					
Stock Number	1			P0 Number	
Date	07-09-2009 -	Paid To:			
Amount inc GST	\$0.00 -	GST	\$0.00 -	Amount ex GST	\$0.00
I	Tax Invoice	B/	45	Date Paid	 +
Reference					
Description					

tab.

- Enter the *Date* the expense was created. If it is today's date, select <F2>. Alternatively, you can select the \checkmark at the end of the field and select a date from the calendar provided. <Tab>
- Enter whom the expense was *Paid to*. (You can select the at the end of the field and select from a list of suppliers). If the supplier that you enter is not already on the list, you will be asked if you would like to save that supplier to the list as a new entry. <Tab>
- Enter the Amount Inc GST. <Tab>
- Did you receive a Tax Inv from the supplier? (Was GST included in the price.) If so tick this box. <Tab>
- Should this expense be included in your BAS report? If you have said yes to having a tax invoice this should also be ticked. You can still elect to have this expense appear on your BAS report even if there was no GST involved (eg: RTA transfers). <Tab>
- The GST amount does not have to be entered if the tax rate is set to 10%. This will be the default if you have ticked the Tax Inv box. <Tab>
- The Amount Ex GST will be automatically created. <Tab>
- If this expense has already been paid, enter the Date Paid. <Tab>

The Creditor Payments tab: (Only available to users with Easy Cars full version)

- The GST Rate should only be either 0 or 10 (current GST rate at time of writing). <Tab>
- You can enter the Reference of the payment here, eg: Cheque number. <Tab>
- The description field allows you to enter a free text comment, eg. Nature of repair. <Tab>
- More than one expense may be added at this time. Once the stock record has been saved the Total Expenses value on the Costing tab will be updated with these values.

The Orders tab:

<u>Note</u>: Orders and Expenses will be transferred to EasyCash Pro only if they are added by creating a Purchase Order.

An Order is much like an Expense except that no work has been carried out or possibly not ordered. Orders are entered in the same way as Expenses. Once they are marked as paid they will become a Paid Expense.

Once the stock record has been saved the Total Orders value on the Costing tab will be updated with these values.



Person/Company you purchased the vehicle from it is entered in this

	<u>Save</u> <u>C</u> ancel		
	Stock Number 1	Payment Number 0	
Click	Date 07-09-2009 + Pa	id To: John Smith 🗾 t	the
	Amount inc GST \$0.00 -		
	Reference		
	Description		

button.

The Add Creditor Payment window will appear.

- Enter the *Date* the payment was made.
- Enter the Amount inc GST that you have paid.
- A *Reference* number can be entered to record the cheque number used to make this payment.
- A *Description* can be entered if required.
- When you are finished, click <u>Save</u>.
- The name of the Person/Company you purchased the vehicle from (as entered on the Acquisition tab) will be displayed in the *Paid To* field on the Creditor/Payments tab.

Adding Pictures to Vehicles

Pictures can be added to Vehicles using the "Photos" button on the right hand side of the screen.

Bud factor	Tarter .	Name -	ALC: NO	i a higan fa	1	1	1	1	45	1.2	1	1	1	100	5	
1991	1000			Teres for Teres		1.5,75 ga	AUGH #	IC.C.Has	10,00	NULSER PR	1.1.2.2.0	R.L.Hes	13,3140	NU.Wee	1,7,89 m	
				- Lapate 		NUM	5	-			11.00	1	-	5	-	
							-		5	5	5	5	5	5	5	
					1	-	5	5	5	5	-		5	-	-	
						5	-	1	-	-	5	-5	-			
						100 M	-0.0m		-		20.7m		1.0.NH	-	2	
					Report Liberty-California Turingtions						2	-		-		
					Advant A	1	1		-		1	-	E.	03,58		
1		-		ww.	1	e Present	-	Lines For	unit.	1	20	• 11				ļ

Once you click on that you'll be greeted with the Photo Screen:

Adding Photos to your Cars:

- On the left-hand side of this screen is where you select the car you wish to put photos on.
- In the middle column is where you find where the photos are saved on your computer.
- On the Right-hand side is where the vehicle photos are shown.
- Once you've found the photo's in the middle column, select the car you wish to add photos on to by clicking on the small grey box next to it. This will select the whole row in blue.
- To add the photos on to the car left click once on the photo in the right-hand screen. This will then show the photo in one of the 12 grey boxes along the bottom of the screen.
- After you've selected all the photos you want on that car (maximum of 12), you then click on the save pictures button along the bottom, alternatively you just select the next car from the left-hand menu and it will prompt you to save the pictures on the car.

Adding Trade-ins

There are two methods with which you can add a trade-in to the EasyCars 2000 database: -

- 1. As a purchase in the "*Stock* screen".
- 2. Via "Sell screen" during a sale.

The more convenient way to enter a trade-in would be at the time of sale (in the SELL screen). This will ensure the invoice for the customer is correct and the trade will be entered into stock automatically, saving you time and reducing errors.

Creating Purchase Orders (PO) (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

Step 1 – From the Data Entry menu, select Purchase Orders then New Purchase Orders, or click on the new

File [Data Entry Notices/Forms	Reports JCSEVN S	etup Update	View Window	Help	🚔 File Data	Entry Notice	es/Forms Report	s JCSEVN	Setup Update	View V	Window
\$ EasyCa	Stock Quote	New PO	Prev POs	Date range	Supdate	\$ EasyCash	Stock	Reports	Mew PO	Prev POs	Date r] range
A	Bulk data entry Purchase Orders	New Purchase			- ,	Add ve	ehicle	<u>E</u> dit	Prder	By <u>S</u> e	arch	<
	Lookup Lists	1. A A A	pdate existing P ions	urchase Orders	penses Memo		Debtor/receipts	5	0	Costing	T	

PO button.

The "New Order Screen" will be displayed.

Print Purchase Orders	
<u>S</u> etup <u>U</u> pdate Pre <u>v</u> iew <u>P</u> rint	
New order Dptions Notes	
P0 date 07:09:2009 + Supplier Invoice	
Contractor	Reference
Address	
City	Authorised by
Rego No Stock No Description	Estimate inc GST Tax Inv BAS G
* -	

Step 2 - Enter the details for the Purchase Order.

- Enter the PO Date for this order. <Tab>
- Enter the Supplier Invoice. <Tab>
- Enter the Contractors details for this PO, or choose from the list provided. <Tab>
- The New Purchase Order may be marked as *Received* if you have in fact received the goods or you are sure of the quantities and prices, if you are running EasyCash Professional, marking a Purchase Order as received will also post this purchase order to the General Ledger and create a Creditor.
- If necessary the Purchase Order may be marked as *Paid* at this time. This also creates the payment in EasyCash Professional. <TAB>
- In the Authorised By field enter in the code for the person approving the Purchase Order. These codes are drawn from your Salesman's list. New identities can be entered at this time. <Tab>
- If the costing information is to be attached to a vehicle, enter that *Stock No*. here, or you can enter in
 the *Rego No*. <u>Note</u>: A purchase order can be created and printed even though it is not attached to a
 vehicle. To do this, leave the Stock Number field blank. If however if the Purchase Order is not for a
 vehicle expense and you have EasyCash Professional you would be better to create the purchase
 order in EasyCash Professional as then the appropriate account can be used. <TAB>
- In the *Description* enter details of work required or goods to be received. This is a mandatory field and if a description is not entered the purchase order cannot be updated. <TAB>
- If an estimated cost is known or required enter it in *Estimated inc GST* field. This will update the Orders value in the Costing tab for that vehicle. <TAB>

- If the Contractor usually gives you a Tax Invoice, the *Tax Inv* and *BAS* tick boxes can be ticked. This is for convenience only and should be verified when or if a Tax Invoice is issued. This will also calculate the GST Amount and Amount Ex-GST based on the tax rate. <TAB>
- If more items are to be included on this PO, tab down to blank stock number field and continue entering details as required.

Step 3 – If you require any messages on the purchase order, selecting the **Options** tab at the top of the screen will allow you to enter them here.

Changes can also be made to the purchase order heading and the look of the form from this screen.

Step 4 – Select Preview to verify all details are correct or select Print.

- If printed successfully, answer yes. This will update the cost of those vehicles and attach the Purchase Orders to the Orders screen on related vehicles or Expenses tab if marked as received.
- If you do not require a printed copy of the Purchase Order just click <u>Update</u>. This will update the cost of those vehicles and attach the purchase orders to the orders screen on related vehicles.

Paying Purchase Orders/Updating to an Expense

(Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

Step 1 – If you are using EasyCash Professional then it is preferable to mark your Purchase Orders as Paid in the Cashbook, however if EasyCars is a standalone program then from the <u>Data Entry</u> menu, select **Purchase Orders** then select **View/reprint/update existing Purchase Orders**, or click on the *Prev POs* box.

🚔 File	Data Entry Notices/Forms	Report	s JCSEVN Se	tup Update	View Window	/ Help	🚔 File Data	Entry Notice	es/Forms Report	s JCSEVN S	etup Update	View	Window	Help
\$ EasyCa	Stock Quote	Ì	Mew PO	Prev POs	Date range	Update	\$ EasyCash	Stock	Reports	New PO	Prev POs	Date	range	State Update
	Bulk data entry	F					<u>A</u> dd ∨e	hicle	<u>E</u> dit	Order	y <u>S</u> ea	arch	<	<u>F</u> ind
	Purchase Orders		New Purchase (Order								•		-
	Lookup Lists		View/renrint/ur	date existing P	urchase Orders	pe		ebtor/receipt	S	Co	osing			Expe
-	cookup cisto	_	and the second		dicitase orders			Vehicle	ľ	Opti	ons	ľ		Mem
	EasyCash		Optic	ons		Mêm								

The "Existing PO" screen will be displayed.

<u>S</u> etup	Preview P(0 Reprint	PO Prevjew F	Pay Adv 🛛 F	leprint Pay A	sdv 🛛	<u>D</u> elete
xisting POs	ptions Notes	1					
23			Purchase Orders				
		ntractor	Addre			City	
07-Sep-2009	1 Joh	nns Tyres	144 M	tarkdown R	oad	Sydney	
•							
I ■ IIII Rovd/Paid date		e Chq/No	Editikama	Mark a	litems as		all items a
	Reference	e Chq/No	Edit įtems		l items as		all items a ed and pa
		e Chq/No					
	북 고		Order Items	Tec	eived		
				<u>r</u> ec GT Tax Inv	eived	receive	ed and pa
··· [tock No Receiv		Order Items	<u>r</u> ec GT Tax Inv	eived GST Amou	receive	ed and pa t ex GST
··· [tock No Receiv		Order Items	<u>r</u> ec GT Tax Inv	eived GST Amou	receive	ed and pa t ex GST
··· [tock No Receiv		Order Items	<u>r</u> ec GT Tax Inv	eived GST Amou	receive	ed and pa t ex GST
··· [tock No Receiv		Order Items	<u>r</u> ec GT Tax Inv	eived GST Amou	receive	ed and pa t ex GST
··· [tock No Receiv		Order Items	<u>r</u> ec GT Tax Inv	eived GST Amou	receive	ed and pa t ex GST
··· [tock No Receiv		Order Items	<u>r</u> ec GT Tax Inv	eived GST Amou	receive	ed and pa t ex GST
··· [tock No Receiv		Order Items	<u>r</u> ec GT Tax Inv	eived GST Amou	receive	ed and pa t ex GST

Step 2 – Make the necessary changes to the purchase order.

- By selecting this field you can choose to view only PO's that are not marked as *Paid*.
- If a PO is marked as either *Received* or *Paid* then you cannot edit it.
- If the PO is <u>not</u> marked as *Received* the *Amount* for the line items may be edited by clicking the *Edit* button and making the relevant changes.

OR

- Select "Mark all items received" if all entries on the purchase order have been received.
- If they have been paid enter the date they were paid or select <F2> to enter today's date.

OR

- Select "Mark all items received and paid" if all entries on the purchase order have been received and paid.
- The date entered in the *Payment Date* field will be today's date. If date is not correct it can be changed at this time.
- To print details of the Payment created use the "Print Payment Advice" button.

•

- Things to Note:
- WHEN YOU EXIT FROM THIS SCREEN, any order items which are associated with a stock number and which have been received OR paid for (or both) are automatically transferred as expenses.
- If you require the Expense to be shown as a Warranty then you will need to manually transfer the Expense to the Warranty screen.
- GST records are created for items transferred as expenses and marked for inclusion in the BAS.

- If a PO item is still an "Order" (Type "O") all details pertaining to this order can still be changed.
- Once an item becomes an expense or warranty expense only the description can be changed. If you want to change anything else then you will have to cancel it and create a new one.
- Items that are not associated with a Stock Number remain "Orders" and are not transferred as expenses or warranty expenses. They cannot be marked for inclusion in the BAS.
- Purchase Orders can be cancelled or deleted by using the Delete button, this removes the Purchase Order from EasyCars.

Transferring Expense Types (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle – See Chapter 4 – "Searching", for more information on this.

Step 2 - Once the correct vehicle is displayed, select Edit or press <Alt> + <E>.

Step 3 – Select the Orders tab to bring up the "Orders" tab.

Step 4 – Highlight the line item to be transferred.

<u>A</u> dd vehicle	<u>E</u> dit	OrderBy	<u>S</u> earch	<	<u>F</u> ind	>	Query	<u>B</u> rowse	k	Previous	Next	>	New/Used		Status	In Stock
Vehicle		Option	~	Ĭ		mo			isition		Creditor/payment		Floorplan		Disposal	
Debtor/receipt		Costing			Expen	ses		Orde	rs		Varranty expense		Notices		Invoices	
Ì								Orders								
~																
Add		<u>E</u> dit	<u>D</u> elete		<u>S</u> ear	ch	B∈	fresh		Transfer		Save Layou	<u>G</u> et Saved	Get De	ifa <u>u</u> lt	
PO	Date Paid	То	Amountinc	Tax E	BA GST	Am	ount ex GST	GST Rate	Date Paid	Referen Descrip	ition					
▶ 1 07	09-2009 John	s Tyres	\$160.00	S	\$14.5	5	\$145.45	10.00		New Ty	res					

Hint: To select more than one entry, hold down the **<Ctrl>** key and click on subsequent entries on the far left grey column, or to select a range of entries after selecting the first one, hold the **<Shift>** button while clicking on the last entry in the range. If selected it will be coloured blue.

Step 5 – Click on the transfer button and then select the category of which you want to transfer the selected item(s). For example if you would like the Order to become a paid expense select the *Expense* option.

The "Costs Transfer" dialog will be displayed asking for confirmation of the transfer.



- Select Ok if you are happy to proceed.
- Select *Cancel* if you need to change your selection.

Step 6 – The Orders are now moved to the Expenses tab with the Date Paid showing as today's date. You can edit the entry if required, then select the <u>Save</u> button or press **<Alt> + <S>**.

You cannot transfer an Expense or a Warranty Expense back to an Order. Changing or Deleting an Expense can only be done if the BAS report for that period has not already been printed.

NOTE:

Floorplan Vehicles (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

How to put a car on Floorplan

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle – See Chapter 4 – "Searching", for more information on this.

Step 2 – When the correct vehicle is displayed, click the Floorplan button on the right hand side of screen.

The "Print Floorplan Invoice" screen will be displayed with the Buyer screen ready for input.

• Enter the Floorplan Date. If you are using the EasyCash Professional, this date must be within your current Financial year.

(‡) Refresh	
Notice	
Transfer	
Disposal	
Sell	
Return	
Floorplar	-
Proposal	
k⊒j P'book	
Cards	
Renew	
Misc	
Inspect	
Photos	

etup <u>U</u> pdate Pre <u>v</u> iew wer Ve <u>h</u> icle(s) Invoice <u>t</u> ext	<u>P</u> rint	
Floorplan Date 07-09-20	Localand	Reference Bailment 🔽
		e at the time of the first curtailment)
Finance company: Address:		_
, adices.		
ABN:		Fax top copy via modem 🛛 🥅
Options		
Print heading		Number of invoice copies 2
Standard text	(•	Top margin (inches) 0.50 🛃
Custom text	0	Left margin (inches)
Include logo left	<u> </u>	
Include logo right		Bottom margin (inches) 0.50 🛓
Print borders	•	Right margin (inches)
Print invoice message	◄	

- Enter the *Reference* if required.
- Select the *Bailment* tick box if floorplan involves bailment.
- ٠

IMPORTANT NOTE:

Bailment is subject to GST. EMA is not. If your floorplan involves bailment, you must leave the bailment box ticked. When a vehicle is placed on bailment, it is effectively sold to the finance company for the bailment amount. Since this sale is subject to GST, and you are liable to remit the GST in the period the vehicle is bailed.

• Select the tick box *Claim ITC on payment of first curtailment*. In selecting this option your specifying if bailment input credit can be taken on first curtailment payment, or whether to wait until bailment is fully paid.

THIS DEPENDS ON WHEN YOU GET A TAX INVOICE FROM THE FINANCE COMPANY. YOU CANNOT CLAIM AN INPUT CREDIT WITHOUT A TAX INVOICE.

- If *ITC on first curtailment* is not ticked, entire ITC is claimed once the bailment is paid in full; it is claimed for the period in which the last curtailment was made.
- Enter in the *Finance Company* details in or select the drop down arrow and select from the list provided.

Step 3 – Select the Vehicle(s) tab.

Setup	<u>U</u> pdate	Pre <u>v</u> iew	<u>P</u> rint				
<u>B</u> uyer Ve <u>h</u>	icle(s) Inv	voice <u>t</u> ext					
			ehicle(s) Sel	ected for Floo			
Stock No	Rec	go Make	Model	Body	Colour	Consideration	Acq
1	AG65H	IY MITSUE	ISHI TRITON	UTILITY		\$1,500.00	
						1 1	•
I IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII	Regis	tration	Make	Model	Built	Colour	
	Regis		Make MITSUBISHI	Model	Built	Colour	
Stock No	1 AG65	5HY			- 17	Colour	

NOTE: The appropriate vehicle should be highlighted otherwise select the correct vehicle using the mouse or the up and down arrows to highlight the correct vehicle and press the **<Spacebar>** to select or deselect.

- Enter in the Floorplan amount including GST. To insert Consideration Given you can press the <F2> key and the amount will be entered into this field.
- Enter any withheld amounts and then,
- Check the GST rate field.
- **Step 4** Select the **Preview** button to check if details on Invoice are correct.
- **Step 5** Select the Print button to print the Invoice.
 - A message will be displayed. If you answer <u>Yes</u> to this, the floorplan will be updated.
 - If the bailment tick box had been selected then the vehicle should now show as "Bailed" in the top right hand side of Stock Screen.
- Step 6 Select the Update button to finalise Floorplan.
 - This step is not required if you have printed the Invoice and answered *Yes*, to 'Did the Invoice print correctly?'.
 - If the bailment tick box had been selected then vehicle should now show as "Bailed" in the top right hand side of stock screen.

How to make a curtailment (payment) for a car on Floorplan (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

Payments can be made through the Cashbook if using EasyCash Professional, alternatively:

Step 1 – Select the correct vehicle – See Chapter 4 – "Searching", for more information on this.



Vehicle Options Memo Acquisition Creditor/payments Floorplan Disposal Reference Date 07-09-2009 Bailment Image: Creditor (payments) Image:	Debtor/receipts	Costing	Expenses	Orders	Warrant	y expense	Notices	Invoices
Amount \$1.234.00 Withheld \$0.00 \$1.234.00 Repayments \$0.00 GST rate 10.00 \$ GST \$112.18 ITC on first curtailment \$0.00	Vehicle	Options	Memo	Acquisition	Creditor/p	ayments	Floorplan	Disposal
Floorplan	Amount	**************************************	Withheld	\$0.00	Bailment		Repayments	
	ľ			Floorplan		_	<u>G</u> et Saved	

Step 2 – Select the Floorplan tab then select the Edit button or press <Alt >+<E>.

• Click on the Add button. The Add Floorplan window will appear.

ave <u>C</u> ancel		
Stock Number	1	Payment Number
Date 07-0	9-2002 🛨 🗸 Paid To: john:	is finance
Amount inc GST	\$0.00 -	
Reference		

- Enter in the *Date* the payment was made. If the payment was made today press the <F2> key, otherwise enter the correct date.
- The Paid To field will default to the Finance Company as entered during the Floorplan setup.
- Enter the Amount Inc GST that you have paid.
- A *Reference* number can be entered if required.
- A Description can be entered if required.
- Click on the save button.

Step 3 – Again, click on the Save button or press <Alt> + <S>.

- The Repayments made and the Floorplan Outstanding will be updated by this amount.
- When you pay the curtailments, you effectively buy the vehicle back from the Finance Company. You can claim an Input Credit for the curtailments paid, but when you claim these input credits depends on your contract with your Finance Company. You cannot claim Input Credits unless you have a tax invoice from the Finance Company.

IMPORTANT NOTE: For more information regarding Floorplan, curtailments and GST see Help and GST Help.

Adjustments to Floorplan vehicles (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

Step 1 – Select the correct vehicle – see "Searching" section.

Step 2 – Click on the Floorplan button down right hand side of stock screen.

The Print Floorplan Invoice screen will be displayed.

Step 3 – Click on the Vehicles tab.

- Enter in the Adjustment Date.
- Enter in the Amount of Adjustment Inc GST, using a minus key if decreasing the amount. Note: Only the difference is to be entered, not the total of the new amount.

Step 4 – Select Update to save the new Floorplan amount.

• You can Print a new invoice by selecting the *Print* button.

Searching

The "Stock" screen allows you to search for vehicles that already exist in your EasyCars 2000 database. There are different methods you can use to find the vehicle or vehicles you are looking for. You can search for individual vehicles, or use a query to find multiple vehicles that match a certain criteria.

Searching for Individual Vehicles

To search for individual vehicles you can use any of the following buttons in the top row of the "Stock" screen.

Search, Find, Browse, Previous or Next.

Changing the Order in which vehicles are displayed.

🛱 File Data	Entry Notice	s/Forms Report	s JCSEVN Se	tup Updat	e View \	Vindov	v Help			•	
\$ EasyCash	Stock	Reports	Mew PO	Prev POs	Date r	ange	Update		REVS	Advertising	JCSE
<u>A</u> dd ∨e	hicle	<u>E</u> dit	OrderB	Y .	<u>S</u> earch	<	Eind	>	Query	B	rowse

The default order in which vehicles are displayed either in the Stock screen or the Browse stock screen is set to Stock Number. This can be changed at any time. To confirm which order you have set, check the very top line in the EasyCars screen.

To change the order click on the **OrderBy** button or press **<Alt> + <Y>** and select the order in which you would like your stock to be displayed. This order will remain active until you change it.

OrderBy	<u>S</u> earch	< <u>F</u> ind	> Query	<u>B</u> rowse K	Previous	Next	>
---------	----------------	----------------	---------	------------------	----------	------	-------------

Using the <u>N</u>ext or <u>P</u>revious buttons.

Using these buttons allows you to sequentially browse through the vehicles contained in your EasyCars 2000 database. Simply click on the <u>Next</u> button or press <Alt> + <N> to move forward, and the <u>Previous</u> button or press <Alt> + <P> to move backwards through the database.

The next or previous vehicles will be displayed according to the current order.

Using the **B**rowse button

This option allows you to view all vehicles in EasyCars and select the vehicle you wish to appear on the main stock screen.
II 8	rowse Stock: By	Stock Num	ber - Vehicle Count: 2				
-	a 5 8 0	(
	•			T.	T		F
	Stock No	Yard Er	try No Rego	Group	Make	Model	Model \
•	1		1 AG65HY		MITSUBISHI	TRITON	MX
	2	0	2 ABC123		PEUGEOT	205	SI

Step 1 – Click on the **Browse** button or press **<Alt> + ** and the "Browse Stock" screen will be displayed with all the stock in your EasyCars 2000 database listed in the order in which you have selected.

Step 2 – You can re-sort the way this screen is displayed temporarily by clicking on the column footer of the field you wish the sort order to be. E.g. if you want this screen displayed in Make order, click on the column heading labelled Make. You can also change the length of the columns by clicking and holding on the line on the right side of the column in the green area and then drag your mouse to the left or right to increase or decrease the size of the column respectively. Also if you click and hold on the green space you can move the columns and align them in different orders. Click the **Save your layout** button to remember the layout for next time.

Step 3 – Highlight the vehicle required and select it by double clicking with the mouse on any part of the vehicle listing.

The selected vehicle will now be displayed on the main Stock Screen.

Using the Search button

This button allows you to search for vehicles using the current sort order you have set. As a default (if you have not changed the sort order) Stock Number will be set.

Step 1 – Click on the Search button or press <Alt> + <S> and the following dialog box will be displayed.

earch	
Enter the Stock Number to find:	ОК
	Cancel

Step 2 - Enter the Stock Number (or what is required based on your sort order) and click OK.

The selected vehicle will now be displayed on the main stock screen.

Searching for Multiple Vehicles

EasyCars 2000 allows you the option of displaying all vehicles that meet a certain criteria, for example all the Fords in stock, or all the Sedans or even all black Porsches! The **<u>F</u>ind** and the **Query** buttons are used for this purpose.

Using the Find button

This option allows you to search for specific vehicles that meet a certain criteria, for example 'Holden's', or 'vehicles that cost less than \$5,000'.

Step 1. Click on the Find button or process (Alts.). (F. and the	Find Record		X
Step 1 – Click on the <u>Find</u> button or press <alt> + <f> and the</f></alt>	Fields:	Operators:	Value or Expression:
<i>"Find Record"</i> dialog box will be displayed.	Stock Number		·
	Registration Number	\diamond	 FindFirst
	Previous Rego (1) Previous Rego (2)	>= <=	C FindNext
	NVIC	>	C FindPrevious
	Make	<	C FindLast
	Model Model Variant	Like	
	Model Series		
	Model Year		
	Body Colour		
	Trim		
	Engine Number VIN/Chassis Number		
	Other Information		
			. 1
	QK	<u>L</u> a	ncel
	Select the field which identifies the record	you want to f	ind

Step 2 – In the Fields column select the field that contains the information you are looking for. For e ample if ▼ you were looking for a 'Holden' you would first select the 'Make' field.

Step 3 – Select the type of comparison you would like to use in the Operators column.

Step 4 – In the Value or Expression column, type in the criteria or value you are looking for. E.g. 'Holden'.

Step 5 – Click on the OK button to search for the specific vehicle that matches your criteria.

Step 6 – If the results found more than one match to your query use the <> either side of the <u>Find</u> button to move through these.

Using the Query Button

Step 1 - Click on the Query button or press <Alt> + <U>.

The "Query" screen will be displayed.

Step 2 – In the **Fields** column select the field that contains the information you are looking for.

Step 3 – Select the type of comparison you would like to use in the **Operators** column.

The available operators are

- equal todoes not equal
- >= great than or equal to
- <= less than or equal to
- > greater than
- < less than
- empty empty
- Like similar to

ïelds:		Operators:	Value or Expression:	
[Stock],Rego Check Digit [Stock],Registration Expiry [Stock],Registration State [Stock],WilC [Stock],Model [Stock],Model [Stock],Model Variant [Stock],Model Series	•	= <> >= <= > < Empty Like		<u></u>
elect where:				*
				-
)rder by:			Select Order:	
)rder by:		*	Select Order: <none> [Stock].Category [Stock].Yard Code IStock].Dealer Licence</none>	*

Step 4 – In the Value or Expression column, type in the criteria or value you are looking for, e.g. HOLDEN.

Stock].Make = 'HOLDEN'	*
A MARINE TRANSPORTATION AND A MARINE	

Step 5 – Click on the Add button. The query you have created will appear in the Select where section.

Hint : If you require more than one condition to be met, for example all 'Black Holden's', then repeat the above steps choosing the appropriate Fields, Operators and Expressions. Select the <u>And</u> button if you want <u>both</u> conditions met, or select the <u>Or</u> button to match <u>either</u> condition.

Step 6 – If required, select the order in which the filtered vehicles will be displayed by clicking in the **Select Order** box, and choose the desired field.

Step 7 – If you wish to use this query at a later date, enter a name in the **Query name** field and then click on the **Save** button.

Clear	<u>E</u> dit	Get Query	⊻iew	<u>S</u> ave	Run <u>Q</u> uery	<u>C</u> ancel
					1	

Step 8 – Click on the Run Query button to view the selected vehicles.

You will now be taken back to the main stock screen.

The very top line of the EasyCars screen will tell you that you have a Query running.

The same steps are taken when selecting data to appear on a report.

Cancelling the existing Query

To display **all** the vehicles in your EasyCars 2000 database, you need to cancel the query you have created.

Step 1 – Click on the Query button or press <Alt> + <U>.

The "Query" screen will be displayed.

Fields:	Operators:	Value or Expression:
[Stock].Category		
[Stock].Yard Code [Stock].Dealer Licence [Stock].Status		1
[Stock].Stock Number [Stock].Entry Number [Stock].Stock Type [Stock].Trading Stock	≻ < Empty Like	
	LING	
Select where: I		
		<u></u>
		*
l Order by:		Select Order:
 Order by: 	*	<none></none>
Order by:		<none> [Stock].Category [Stock].Yard Code</none>
 Order by: Query name:	۸ ۲	<none> [Stock].Category</none>

Step 2 – Select <u>Cancel</u> button.

Check the top line of the EasyCars screen to ensure you have cancelled the query.

Chapter

5

Chapter 5 : Selling Vehicles

vehicles.	e venicie you wish t	o sell. See Chapter 4 – '	'Searching " for m		onsearen	ng -
p 2 – Click on the S	Sell button located o	on the right hand side o	f the screen,			
d the currently disp	blayed vehicle will be	e selected.				
e Sell Vehicle(s) scre	een will be displaye	d, opened and ready fo	r input on the firs	t page – <u>B</u> u	yer.	-
Sell Vehicle(s) [DL:12]	345]		and one Party			X
<u>S</u> etup <u>U</u> pdate	Pre <u>v</u> iew <u>P</u> rint					
Buyer Vehicle(s) Trad	le in 1 Trade in 2 Invoid	e/Notice Invoice <u>t</u> ext <u>C</u> ontra	ct text Notice errore			
			certexel Monce enois I			1
Date Sold 07-09-20	🛄 🛓 🚽 How Sold 🛛	Print disposal rego	transfer 🔽			
– Sold to:			Sold to:			<u> </u>
Einek Minnen I		1.1				
First Name						
First Name						
Last/Company Address City					-	
Last/Company Address City DriversLicence/						
Last/Company Address City DriversLicence/ Cust No	Exp [Exp ···	
Last/Company Address City DriversLicence/	Telephone		Tele	phone		
Last/Company Address City DriversLicence/ Cust No			Tele	bhone		
Last/Company Address City DriversLicence/ Cust No	Telephone		Tele	Mobile		
Last/Company Address City DriversLicence/ Cust No ABN	Telephone		Tele	Mobile	Exp ···	
Last/Company Address City DriversLicence/ Cust No ABN Email	Telephone Mobile	▼ MD [[]] [] [] []] [] []] []] [] []] []] [] []] []] [] []] [] []] [] [] [] []] []	Tele	Mobile D	Exp ··	
Last/Company Address City DriversLicence/ Cust No ABN	Telephone Mobile		Tele	Mobile D	Exp ···	

Step 3 – Complete the details on the *Buyer* screen.

• Enter the *Date* of the sale. Today's date will automatically be defaulted into this field and should be changed if not correct. <Tab>

- Select the correct option for How Sold. In most cases this will be either S or W. If you are selling the vehicle to another dealer you should select W. <Tab>
- If you require EasyCars to print the RTA disposal notice tick Print Disposal Rego Transfer. <Tab>
- If the vehicle is being sold to a private person enter their First Name into the First Name field. <Tab>
- If the vehicle is being sold to a private person enter their *Last Name* <u>into the Last/Company field</u>. If the vehicle is being sold to a dealer enter their *Company* name <u>into the Last/Company field</u> or select from the list provided. <Tab>
- Enter the Address details for the purchaser. <Tab>
- If being sold to a dealer enter their dealers licence number in the MD field. <Tab>
- You can enter the purchaser's Drivers Licence and DOB if known. <Tab>
- If being sold to a dealer enter their ABN if known. <Tab>
- If you don't want the purchase cost of this vehicle to be shown on the sell screen tick the *Hide purchase cost* box. This is helpful if the customer can see what you are entering. <Tab>
- If you are to receive a trade-in as part of this sale select the *tax* status here for the Trade. In most circumstances this will remain at Non Registered, as you don't usually get trade-ins from other dealers. See Chapter 4 for more information on tax status. <Tab>
- If the vehicle being sold is to go into 2 names enter the Name and Address details for the joint purchaser. <Tab>
- Enter the Salesman who completed the sale. This information can be used in the Salesman Commission Report. <Tab>
- Enter the *Trust A/c* if the vehicle being sold is a consignment and you have not yet entered the account number. <Tab>

Step 4 – Once all details are entered, click on the Vehicle(s) tab or press the <Page Down> key or press <Alt> + <H>.

Complete the details on the Vehicle(s) screen.

<u>Note</u>: The appropriate vehicle should be highlighted otherwise select the correct vehicle using the mouse or the up and down arrows to highlight the correct vehicle and press the **<Spacebar>** to select or deselect.

- Enter the Sell Price Inc GST for this vehicle. <Tab>
- If you have given the purchaser a *Discount Inc GST* and want this figure to appear on the invoice enter the amount of the discount here. This is best used when trying to avoid an Overallowance on a tradein. See 'Overallowances vs Discount' under the Help menu. <Tab>

				1 Vehicle(s)							
Stock No	Re	go Make	Mode			olour	Acq Odome	eter Engine T	уре	Transmissi	
2		1Y MITSUBISH 23 PEUGEOT	1 TRIT	ON UTILITY 3D HAT		ΙΔΓΚ	÷	0 CARB	ONIC F/INJ	5 SP MAN	
	1.501	Lorreducor	200	00 1.11	0.10				01110111110		
▲ Stock No		Registration		Make		Model		Built		Colour	
DOCK NO		AG65HY		MITSUBISHI	1	TRITON		7		Colour	
								1.176			
Sell price inc.		Discount inc GS	T	Net Sell inc GST	r –	GST Bate		GST Amoun	t.	Sell Price a	ex GST
		Discount inc GS \$1	ST 0.00 -	Net Sell inc GST	T \$0.00	GST Rate	10.00 *	GST Amour	t \$0.00	Sell Price e	ex GST \$0.0
	GST					GST Rate		GST Amour		Sell Price e	
1	GST \$0.00 -						10.00	GST Amour		Sell Price (
s Purchase Cos	GST \$0.00 -		0.00		\$0.00		10.00 <u>+</u>	GST Amoun	\$0.00	[
s Purchase Cos \$1,50	GST \$0.00 -	\$1	0.00		\$0.00	E	10.00 <u>+</u>		\$0.00	[\$0.0
Purchase Cos	GST \$0.00 -	\$I Descript	0.00		\$0.00	E	10.00 🛓		\$0.00	[\$0.0
9urchase Cos \$1,50 Tax Invoi Odometer Nor	GST \$0.00 -	\$I Descript	0.00		\$0.00	E	10.00 🛓		\$0.00	[\$0.0
Surchase Cos \$1,50 Tax Invoi	GST \$0.00 -	\$I Descript	0.00		\$0.00	E	10.00 🛓		\$0.00	[\$0.0
9urchase Cos \$1,50 ☐ Tax Invoi Ddometer Nor	GST \$0.00 - st 00.00 - ice w 0 -	\$I Descript	0.00		\$0.00	E ant Inc GST	10.00 ±		\$0.00	[\$0.0
Purchase Cos \$1,50 Tax Invoi Ddometer Nor No odometer	GST \$0.00 - st 00.00 - ice w 0 -	\$ Descript	0.00 - iion <u>E</u> dit	 	\$0.00	E ant Inc GST	tras GST Rate		\$0.00	[\$0.0

• Enter the *GST Rate*. This should in most cases be left at 10%, however you may need to change it if you are selling this vehicle to a customer who has a GST exemption. In that case you would change this to 0. <Tab>

• *Purchase Cost* is displayed and able to be entered here only if the vehicle was a consignment and the purchase amount is determined on selling. <Tab>

• Tick the *Tax Invoice* box if the vehicle was being consigned from a business and you are sure you would receive a tax invoice for the purchase amount (your buying price). <Tab>

- Enter the odometer reading in the Odometer Now field. If this is the same as was entered when bringing the vehicle into stock you can press the <F2> key and that value will be duplicated here.
 <Tab>
- If No Odometer check this box. <Tab>
- Enter the Inspection Rpt number for vehicles requiring this. <Tab>
- Enter the Report Date. You can use the <F2> key if it was today's date. <Tab>
- If the customer purchased any *Extras* at time of sale enter them here now.
- Receipt any money you have received from the customer for a deposit here now. Enter any money you have paid to the customer as a negative amount. This will show on the Receipts screen. If you wish this to show on the invoice and be deducted from the amount owed ensure that the On Inv field shows Yes.

<u>Note</u>: If more than 1 vehicle is to be included, repeat the above steps selecting (highlighting) a different vehicle each time. The 'Sell Price' and 'Odometer Reading' must be filled in for each vehicle being sold.

Step 5 – Once all details are entered, click on the Trade-in <u>1</u> tab or press the <Page Down> key or press <Alt> +

Sell Vehicle(s) [D	L:12345]			-	an Prop		
<u>S</u> etup <u>U</u> pdate	Pre <u>v</u> iew	<u>P</u> rint					
Buyer Vehicle(s)	Trade-in 1 Trade	+in <u>2 I</u> nvoice/N	otice Invoice <u>t</u> e	ext Contract text	Notice errors		
Stock No	-						1
		Group	~			Acquired 🔟	09-2009 + -
Registration		Rego Label/		Registration Expiry	· · · .		SW I
		Check Digit			- I see a second se		
Make [Ψ.	Model	v	Model Year	<u> </u>	odel Variant	Y
Series	Ŧ	Body	~	Colour	· · ·	Trim	~
Engine No				VIN/Chassis No			
Built Date	1	Compliance /		Cylinders	-	Other Info	
Engine [v	Engine Capacity	~	Engine Size	v	Transm'n	v
Doors	0 *						
Drive Train			Unleaded Fuel		🗖 Diesel Fuel		LPG Fuel
Odometer	0 *	Distance	0 *	Prev Rego			
1	No odometer 🔲	•	Klm O Miles	Comme	rcial / exempt	2 To	nne or over 🗖
Description							
Allowance:	Overallo	Mance.	Estimate Price ind		EVS Result) Passed	O Failed
\$0.1		\$0.00		\$0.00		J I doocd	
Payout:					Deduct equity	from purchase	
\$0.1	00 🔺 to				T'fer Paj	yout to creditors	
<u>.</u>							
					_		

Complete the details on the *Trade-in 1* tab if required.

 If the vehicle being used as a trade-in has already been entered into the EasyCars database select the Stock No. from the list provided. <Tab>

If not previously entered, continue to complete the rest of the information on this tab. Once updated, this information will be used to enter this vehicle into stock in the EasyCars database, so care should be taken to get the details correct.

- Enter the Registration Number of the vehicle you are entering into stock. <Tab>
- If you are a Dealer in QLD enter the check digit. <Tab>
- The Date Acquired will default to the date of the sale. <Tab>
- Enter the Registration Expiry date of the vehicle registration. <Tab>

- Enter the State in which the vehicle is registered. <Tab>
- *Groups* can be used to help you group vehicle together for reporting purposes. If you want to use this enter a Group. <Tab>
- Enter the *Built* date of the vehicle. <Tab>
- If the *Compliance* date is the same as the built date you can press <F2> and the date will be entered for you. If it is different you will have to enter it manually. <Tab>
- Enter any Previous Vehicle Registration numbers if known. <Tab>
- Other Info can be used to record things such as the Radio PIN number etc. <Tab>
- Enter the Engine Number. <Tab>
- Enter the VIN/Chassis Number. If this number is completely or partially the same as the engine number you can use <F2> to duplicate it here. <Tab>
- The make/model/body/colour and trim of the vehicle can be selected from the Lookup List by selecting the at the end of each of the fields or by typing it in. If not already in the list you can add it at this point. <Tab>
- Enter the figure that is currently displayed on the vehicle's Odometer. <Tab>
- Enter the *Distance Travelled*. If this is the same as the odometer press <F2>. The distance travelled is used when the odometer is not a true record of the distance travelled eg. Odometer replace, etc.
 <Tab>
- Select if the odometer/distance travelled is klm or miles.
- The *Engine and Transmission* fields can be entered if required. These fields will be displayed on the Stock Cards and other reports. <Tab>
- The Description field allows you to enter any descriptive text. This text can also be displayed on reports. <Tab>
- If a REVS check has been performed enter the result's status. <Tab>
- Enter the amount in the *Allowance* field the customer was told they would get for the trade-in. This will become the consideration given. <Tab>
- If an Overallowance is needed enter it here. <Tab>
- Enter the *Estimated Selling Price inc GST* as this figure is required to print forms and will be updated on the costing tab. <Tab>
- If there is a Payout figure to be sent to a Finance Company enter it here. <Tab>
- Enter To whom the payout is to be made (name of Finance Company). <Tab>
- *T'fer Payout to creditors* is to be ticked if you require the payout figure to be recorded as a creditors amount. You can update this once the payment has been made.

Step 6 – Once all details are entered, click on the Trade-in <u>2</u> tab or press the <Page Down> key or press <Alt> +

Complete the details on the *Trade-in 2* as outlined above if required.

Step 7 – Once all details are entered, click on the <u>Invoice/Notice</u> tab or press the <Page Down> key or press <Alt> + <I>.

Complete or check the details on the Invoice/Notice tab.

sell Vehicle(s) [DL:12345]		Trans. Print	
<u>S</u> etup <u>U</u> pdate Pre <u>v</u> iew <u>P</u> rint			
Buyer Vehicle(s) Trade-in 1 Trade-in 2 Invo	ce/Notice Invoice <u>t</u> ext <u>C</u> ontract te	xt	ns
Invoice Type O Invoice O Contract	O Finance 🛛 C	redit Regulated	O Intertrade
Notices			
O Current Form O No form	O F	Form 7	O No form
RTA copy (where applicable)	D F	ax customer co	ppies via modem
Email customer copies via Internet	🗖 S	Send customer o	copies via Direct Sales

If selling the Vehicle directly to a Private Person or Company (not another Dealer)

• The Invoice Type should be in Invoice or Contract and Notices should be Current Form and RTA Copy.

If selling the Vehicle to a Private Person or Company (not another Dealer) through a Finance Company. Additional fields will be displayed if Finance Company selected.

- Finance should be selected for *Invoice Type* and Current Form and RTA Copy should be selected for *Notices*.
- If *Credit Regulated* is <u>ticked</u>, the Invoice will display Invoice to Purchaser and Financed By Finance Company.
- If Credit Regulated is <u>not ticked</u>, the Invoice will display Invoice to Finance Company and Delivery To Purchaser.
- The Finance Company Name and Address details will also have to be entered.

Setup Update Pre <u>v</u> iew <u>P</u> rint uver Vehiclefs) Trade-in 1 Trade-in 2 Invoice/Noti	
uyer Ve <u>h</u> icle(s) Trade-in <u>1</u> Trade-in <u>2</u> Invoice/Noti	
stand the second strand s	^{utice} Invoice <u>t</u> ext <u>Contract text Notice errors</u>
⊢ Invoice Type	
O Invoice O Contract	● Finance □ Credit Regulated ○ Intertrade
_ Notices	
O Current Form O No form	O Form 7 O No form
RTA copy (where applicable)	Fax customer copies via modem
Email customer copies via Internet	Send customer copies via Direct Sales

If you are selling the Vehicle to another Dealer

 Intertrade should be selected for the *Invoice Type* - and either Form 7A for multiple transfers or 7 for a single transfer should be selected for *Notices*. If you are unable to make these selections go back and check that you have entered W – (Wholesale) for how sold - and that you have selected a motor dealer <u>in the Buyer's tab</u>.

"Sell Vehicle(s) [DL:12345]		And one Part	
<u>S</u> etup <u>U</u> pdate Pre <u>v</u> iew <u>P</u> rint			
<u>B</u> uyer Ve <u>h</u> icle(s) Trade-in <u>1</u> Trade-in <u>2</u> Invoi	ce/Notice Invoice <u>t</u> ext	Contract text Notice errors	
- Invoice Type O Invoice O Contract	O Finance	Credit Regulated	⊙ Intertrade
_ Notices			
O Current Form O No form		O Form 7 O	No form
RTA copy (where applicable)		🔲 Fax customer copies vi	a modem
Email customer copies via Internet		Send customer copies	via Direct Sales

For all option ensure that the printing options and margins are correct. These usually do not change once they have been set.

Coptions			
Print heading		Number of invoice copies	2 +
Standard text	→ ⊙	Top margin (inches)	0.50
Custom text Include logo left	0 ◀	Left margin (inches)	
Include logo right	ă	Bottom margin (inches)	0.50
Print borders Print invoice message	Y	Right margin (inches)	0.00
Print conditions of sale		heading Vehicle details:	
	Γ		
If selected, the Name and Address details as entered in the Registration screen will be printed in plain text as a header on the invoice.	If selected, the conditions of sale as entered in the Invoice Text screen will be printed on the invoice.	If selected, the heading as entered in the Invoice Text screen will be printed as a header on the invoice.	If selected, the Invoice Message text as entered in the Invoice Text screen will be printed in the body of the invoice.

Step 8 – Once all details are entered, click on the Invoice <u>Text</u> tab or press the <Page Down> key or press <Alt> + <T>.

Complete or check the details on the *Invoice Text* tab.

Most details on this tab will not change once they have been set.

- If you like to have a fancy header on your invoice these can be created in the *Custom Heading* section using standard word processing skills with the icons provided.
 If you require your banking details or other additional text to appear on the invoice this can be entered in the *Invoice Message* section.
- A standard *Conditions of Sale* has been entered as a default. If you wish to change it you can do so.
- <u>Note</u>: For these options to be used on the invoice you must select them in the print options on the previous page.

Step 9 – Once all details are entered, click on the <u>Contract Text</u> tab or press the <Page Down> key or press <Alt> + <C>.

	evin 1 Tradev	e-in 2 Invoice/Notice Invoice text Contract text Notice errors	
Edher AeTicle(2) Ligg	eninī Linade.	HILE I THATE HUDDE HUDDE 2011 CONTRACTORY MONCE BIOLS	
🗃 日 🔿 🗛 🐰 I	B 🔒 🖪	B Z 및 트 프 프 프 프 프 프 ▲ 이	
		Custom Heading	
	Ine	e Professional	
🗃 日 📾 🗛 🐰 🛛	🖻 🛍 🖪	8 I U E E E E E E E E E	
		Invoice Message	
For Direct deposi	it, Banking o	details are as follows:	Π
			-
☞ ₽ ₽ ₩ %	b C B		
@ 	B B	B I U E E E E E E E E E E E E	_
			_
No title to the vehicle	sold shall p	Invoice Conditions of Sale	
No title to the vehicle (a) Any cheque paid	sold shall p	Invoice Conditions of Sale pass to the Purchaser if: r in part or full payment for such car is dishonoured, or	or
No title to the vehicle (a) Any cheque paid (b) The title to the ca	sold shall p by him/her ar traded in l	Invoice Conditions of Sale	
No title to the vehicle (a) Any cheque paid (b) The title to the ca (c) In the event of fin the Purchaser as	sold shall p by him/her ar traded in l ancial accors a customer	Invoice Conditions of Sale pass to the Purchaser if: r in part or full payment for such car is dishonoured, or by the Purchaser in part or full payment is not free of all defects and encumbrances, mmodation being required by the Purchaser any finance company declines to accep ar	t
No title to the vehicle (a) Any cheque paid (b) The title to the ca (c) In the event of fin the Purchaser as Until the whole of the	sold shall p by him/her ar traded in l ancial accor a customer foregoing co	Invoice Conditions of Sale pass to the Purchaser if: r in part or full payment for such car is dishonoured, or by the Purchaser in part or full payment is not free of all defects and encumbrances, mmodation being required by the Purchaser any finance company declines to accep ar conditions or such of them as shall apply to the transaction shall have been fulfilled th	t
No title to the vehicle (a) Any cheque paid (b) The title to the ca (c) In the event of fin the Purchaser as	sold shall p by him/her ar traded in l ancial accor a customer foregoing co	Invoice Conditions of Sale pass to the Purchaser if: r in part or full payment for such car is dishonoured, or by the Purchaser in part or full payment is not free of all defects and encumbrances, mmodation being required by the Purchaser any finance company declines to accep ar conditions or such of them as shall apply to the transaction shall have been fulfilled th	t

- A standard Contract Text has been entered as a default. If you wish to change it you are free to do so.
- Note: Invoice Type must be set to Contract to enable this text to print as part of the Invoice.

Step 10 – If you are happy with what you have entered it is always a good idea to preview what you have done.

- Select the Preview button from the top row of the tab.
- You can look through what is going to be printed by using the arrows at the top of the page.
- Close the preview window to proceed. You can do this by either selecting the X in the top right hand corner or by selecting File then Exit.

There are a few ways to proceed here:

- 1. If the preview showed you what you were expecting, you can print the invoices and forms and automatically update the sale and Police Book.
- 2. If the preview did not show you the forms, there may have been some Missing information. This means you will have to make changes and return.
- 3. You may choose to update the sale without printing the forms (Print forms later).
- 4. You may choose to Cancel the sale do not proceed.

1. Print and Update the Sale

- Click on the <u>Print button</u>.
- After confirming that the correct printer is being selected, click on *Ok*.
- The Forms and Invoice(s) should now be available at the printer and should be checked.

Did the invoice print corr	ectly?

- If they printed correctly answer <u>Yes</u> to the box that now will be displayed on the screen.
- If they did not print correctly answer <u>No</u>. You will now be returned to the Sell screen. You can make the necessary changes and return to the Print option. Destroy any incorrectly printed forms immediately.

2. Preview did not show forms

After closing the preview window the <u>Notice Errors <Alt> + <N></u> screen will be automatically displayed if no forms were produced (unless you selected <u>No Forms</u> on the Invoice/Notice screen).

etup	<u>U</u> pdate	Pre <u>v</u> iew	<u>P</u> rint				
ver V	e <u>h</u> icle(s) Tra	ide-in <u>1</u> Trad	e-in <u>2</u> <u>I</u> nvoi	e/Notice Invoice <u>t</u> e	xt Contract te	xt <u>N</u> otice errors	
- Matia	والمتعارية والمتلا	a is because	Han fallauina	ufarration is alsonad			
a Notic	e did not print	, it is because	the following	nformation is changed	l or missing:		
	·	, it is because	the following	nformation is changed	l or missing:		
STOCK Engine I	NUMBER 1 lumber	, it is because	the following	nformation is changed	l or missing:		
STOCK Engine I VIN/Ch	NUMBER 1 Iumber Issis Number	, it is because	the following	nformation is changed	l or missing:		
STOCK Engine I VIN/Ch/ Address	NUMBER 1 Iumber Issis Number		the following	nformation is changed	l or missing:		

- This screen displays the reason why no Forms were printed.
- Go back through the sell screen and complete the required information. Information that appears in brackets are not mandatory Police Book information and does not have to be entered in order to print forms, however it is best to have this complete. Once the changes have been made you can preview and print the forms and invoice(s).

3. Update without printing forms

If the Invoice details are correct, but there are no forms to preview and you have also checked the Notice Errors and have an error that says there is No Current Notice printed or there is missing information, you

Refresh

() Notice

can still update the sale and print the invoices. You will have to make changes (possibly resulting in a New form to be printed) and print the Forms from the Notice icon.

To do this, display the vehicle you are working on, on the "Stock" screen.
Make and save any changes if required.
Select the Notice icon on the right hand side of the screen.

🞐 Print Forms		Transf
<u>Setup</u> Pre <u>v</u> iew <u>P</u> rir		Dispos
Options Advanced		Sell
Stock Number 2 Re	go ABC123 Make PEUGEOT 205	Jen (2)
Built Date 01/94 Dista	ce 123,456 Sell \$3,000.00	Retur
Current Form Num	er Status <unknown></unknown>	
This F	rm 8 🗾 Date affixed 07-09-2009 👘 🔹	
NEW form	Missing information:	

- Ensure the correct *Form* number is selected and that there is no *Missing Information* that needs to be completed.
- Select the <u>Print button</u>, then print the NEW form and answer YES to "Did the Notice print correctly?" You will now be back at the Stock Screen.
- Select the Notice icon on the right hand side of the screen again. This time the option to print the Customer and RTA copies should be ticked depending on the Form required, eg: Form 4 there is no Customer Copy.
- Select the <u>Print button then print the form(s) and answer YES to "Did the Notice print correctly?"</u>. You will now be back at the stock screen.

4. Do Not Proceed (cancel)

Select to close the Sell Vehicles screen.

- You can do this by either clicking on the X in the top right hand corner or by clicking on the icon in the top left-hand corner then <u>C</u>lose.
- Answer <u>Yes</u> to the dialog box displayed and you will be returned to the Stock screen. The vehicle will not be marked as sold.

Sending Forms to Dealers via Fax

Note: Fax software must be installed on your computer for this option to work.

When completing details on the *Sell* screen, it is important to check what is setup on the **Invoice/Notice** screen.

- If you tick *Fax customer copies via modem*, the form 7 or 7a and the customer's invoice will be created electronically. A File Copy of the form 7 or 7a will be printed and an invoice will also be printed if you have the number of invoice copies to be greater than one.
- After completing all the sale information, select <u>Print</u>. This will print your form and invoice copy (if any). The print box will be displayed and will display your fax software automatically.

- Note: If an invoice is required, select 2 for the number of invoice copies. This will send one invoice to the dealer via modem, and one to your selected printer.
- Follow your fax software guide to continue.
- Once the fax has been sent successfully, click <u>*Ok*</u> to print your copies. If no forms are printed, check the Notice Errors screen for details on why they have not been printed.

Entering Monies Received.

Once you received money for the vehicle that you have sold it should be receipted. EasyCars does not produce a receipt for money that was received after time of purchase. However EasyCars can reprint an Invoice showing receipts. See Chapter 7 – "**Reprinting Invoices for a Sold Vehicle**".

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle. See Chapter 4 – "Searching", for more information on this.

Step 2 – Select the Debtor/Receipts tab select Add.

Step 3 – Enter the details of the additional money received and select **Save** when complete. In the example below the receipt that has already been entered was done so at time of the sale.

ave <u>C</u> ancel			
			🗖 Non Refundable
Stock Number	1		
Date	07-09-2009	Туре	D
Amount inc GST	\$2,000.00	Cheque/Reference No	DD1002457
Description	Deposit		
	Include on Invoice	Date Banked	07-09-2009

Cancelling Sales and Purchases

Determining the Action Required

Before determining which action you need to take have a look at the table below as a guide.

	Changing		Changing	Changing	Changing	Changing	Returning to
Tax Status on Acquisition	Consideration Given		Date Acquired	Tax Status	Sale Price	Date Sold	Owner
Tax Invoice Provided Not Sold	Return Adjust/ Purchase		Cancel/Purchase Cancel Cancel Cancel Cancel/Sale Edit Stock Screen*	Return Cancel/ Purchase Cancel Cancel/Sale Edit Stock Screen	N/A	N/A	Return Cancel/ Purchase
Tax Invoice Provided Sold	Cancel Adjust/ Purchase		Cancel/Sale Cancel/Sale Cancel/Purchase Cancel/Sale (No Sale) * Edit Stock Screen	Cancel/Sale Cancel/Sale Cancel/Sale Cancel/ Purchase Cancel/Sale (No Sale) * Edit Stock Screen	Cancel Adjust/Sale	Cancel/Sale Cancel/Sale Remove Disposal Date Onlv	Cancel Cancel/ Sale Return Cancel/ Purchase
Non Registered Not Sold	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen		N/A	N/A	Return Cancel/ Purchase
Non Registered Sold	Cancel Adjust/ Purchase	Cancel/S ale Edit Stock	Cancel Cancel/Sale Edit Stock Screer	1	Cancel Adjust/Sale	Cancel/Sale Cancel/Sale Remove Disposal Date Only Sell	Cancel/Sale Cancel/Sale Return Cancel/ Purchase

USING EASYCARS 2000

	Screen		

	Changing	Changing	Changing	Changing	Changing	Returning to Owner
Tax Status on Acquisition	Consideration Given	Date Acquired	Tax Status	Sale Price	Date Sold	Owner
Awaiting Tax Invoice Not Sold	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	N/A	N/A	Return Cancel/ Purchase
Awaiting Tax Invoice Sold	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	Cancel Adjust/Sale**	Cancel Cancel/ Purchase Remove Disposal Date Only	Cancel/Sale
No ITC Not Sold	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	N/A	N/A	Return Cancel/ Purchase
No ITC Sold	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	Edit Stock Screen	Cancel	Cancel/Sale Cancel/Sale Remove Disposal Date Only	Cancel/Sale Cancel/Sale Return Cancel/ Purchase

* Remember to adjust the GST rate to 10% when prompted and to re-enter costing information.

** This will only produce an adjustment note, which you will have to give to the customer along with the original invoice. If this option is not suitable you will have to cancel the sale ensuring you remove disposal date only and correct the selling price and resell.



Cancelling a Sale

6 tep 2 – V	Vhen the corr	ect vehicle i	s displayed	l, click on t	he Cancel but	ton.	、 、	
The " <i>Adju</i>	stments / Can	cellations"	screen will	be display	ed.		\mathbf{i}	
	Cancellatio	n and Sale	must be se	elected				\mathbf{i}
	\backslash				1			\mathbf{i}
Exp(and 2000 400 105 The State For Data Staty - Matricent For Sec. 1 1 Expt Expt Qata entry Options c Adjustment Type	desixed Log Deuter - Clear Code - 1000 - Upartol m Reports - KSDNK - Smpo - Update - Verer		Addressing CODM Search Co	action Type				
C Adjus		@ Cancellation		@ Sale	Pud			
Slock No	Hegistration ADDEH/ Date Acquired	Make MITSUB Netto Ve		Model TRITON GST Rate	GST Amount	Colour Purch Cost ex GST		
Acquisition: Disposet	07-09-2009 Date Sold 07-09-2009	P NetSell i	\$1,500.00 ic GST \$0.00	GST Rate	% \$112.18 GST Amount % \$0.00	Sell Price ex GST	\$1,387.82	
Purchaser:	john		50% a []		-			
Cancellation of	sale:				MD			Tick here if you do not have to
Adjustment Date	Amount of Adjustment b	nc GST GST Rote		Remove disposal date only Excluding GST	80.00 ···	Salesman	•	remove all details
	Fex customer copy via	modern	r		Number of copies of adjustment n	ote	2 +	sale.

Ensure the Adjustment Type is set to Cancellation. <Tab>

- Ensure the Transaction Type is Sale. <Tab>
- Tick Remove disposal date only if you do not have to remove all information about the sale. See matrix on previous page. <Tab>
- Enter the *Adjustment Date*. Care should be taken when entering the date here, as you have to consider that you may have already completed your BAS report and received an input credit for the purchase/sale of this vehicle.
- Enter the *Salesman* who cancelled the sale. He will then be recorded in the Audit Trail. This is only available with the Auction version of EasyCars. <Tab>
- If you would like to Fax customer copy via modem tick this box. <Tab>
- Enter the Number of copies of Adjustment Notes required. <Tab>

Step 3 – Click on the Options tab.

 Depending on what you are doing with this vehicle select or deselect the When cancelling a sale options (This doesn't apply if you use EasyCash Pro with EasyCars).

onfirm			NUM C	×
You are	about to:			
		e disposal date existing invoices		
THE OV		ERE TRADE-IN(S), D	ON'T FORGET TO RETURN	THEM TO
			ОК	Cancel

Step 4 – Click the <u>Update</u> button or the <u>Print</u> button if an Adjustment Note is required.

• A message will be displayed confirming the cancellation. If you are happy to continue, click *Ok*.

• Once you have clicked on *Ok* you will be asked if the Adjustment Note printed successfully. If you answer <u>Yes</u> to this the Sale will be cancelled and you will be returned to the stock screen.

(†

Refresh

Notice Transfer Disposal

Sell Cancel

Cancelling a Purchase

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle – see the '**Searching**' section.

Step 2 – When the correct vehicle is displayed, click on the Return button. χ

							The "Adjustments /
Employ 200 w102155: The Professional Car Deal Sila Data Entry Notices/Forms Reports JC	ler - Olent Code: 1490 - Use:: Maiter Account - (Adjustment) SEVN Sinter Update View Window Help	Autoriation)		-		. /	Cancellations" coroon
S S de la		Strif Advecting CODVISion	20				The "Adjustments / Cancellations" screen will be displayed.
Eyt Situp	Updete Pr	egiew Erist					will be displayed.
Dato entry Options							\mathbf{N}
Adjustment Type		Tiene	action Type				
C Adjustment	R [Cancellation]		C Sale		# Parthe	19	
Stock No	Hegistration	Make	Model	_	bult	Colour	
1	aseter 2	MTSUBISH	TRITON		1		
	Date Acquired	Netto Vendor	UST Rate		GST Amount	Purch Cost ex GST	
Acquisition	07-08-2009 P	\$1.503.00	10.00	x	\$112.18	\$1,387.82	
	Date Sold	Net Sell inc GST	GST Rate		GST Amount	Sell Price ex GST	
Disposel:		\$0.02	0.00	*	\$0.00	\$0.00	
Vendor:	John						
	Snift						
					-	- 2	
					MD		
Return to vendor:							
	Amount of Adjustment Inc GST						
Adjustment Date			Excluding GST			Seletman	
-	(11.502.07)	10.00 + %		(\$1.32	Adjust creditors amount	1	
	Fex customer copy-via modem	r			Number of copies of adjustment nor	12 2 +	
C VPogran Filer/ExpCarr/Jed Stock.mdb				_		(0°.5ep.2009 £45.PM	1

- Ensure the Adjustment Type is set to Cancellation. <Tab>
- Ensure the Transaction Type is Purchase. <Tab>
- Enter the *Adjustment Date*. Care should be taken when entering the date here, as you have to consider that you may have already completed your BAS report and received an input credit for the purchase/sale of this vehicle.

Step 3 – Click on the Options tab.

• Depending on what you are doing with this vehicle (are you really returning it, or just cancelling the purchase to make further changes) select or deselect the When returning a vehicle to original owner options (This doesn't apply if you use EasyCash Pro with EasyCars).

* Cancel any e	original owner details to the disposal screen xisting invoices tings, including acquisition cost ers, warranty

Step 4 – Click on the **Update** button.

• A message will be displayed confirming the cancellation. If you are happy to continue select *Ok*.

• You will now be returned to the stock screen, the vehicle will show as Sold with the How Sold (Disposal tab) being No Sale.

Adjusting a Sale / Purchase Amount

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle – see Chapter 4 – "**Searching**" section.

Step 2 – When the correct vehicle is displayed, click on the Cancel button.

The "Adjustments / Cancellations" screen will be displayed.

Adjustment and either Sale/Purchase must be selected

Ensure the Adjustment Type is set to Adjustment. <Tab>

Ensure the Transaction Type is Sale or Purchase depending on the figure you have to adjust. <Tab>

Adjustment Type	l ransaction Type	
C Cancellation	C Sale	

- Enter the *Adjustment Date*. Care should be taken when entering the date here, as you have to consider that you may have already completed your BAS report and received an input credit for the purchase/sale of this vehicle.
- Enter the Adjustment Amount Inc GST.
- <u>IMPORTANT</u>: You only enter the difference between what is currently on file and the amount it should be. There are 2 examples here using an adjustment to a sale. The same applies to adjusting purchases.
- In the example above the vehicle was sold for \$14 300 and it should have been \$15 300. In this case, enter \$1 000.
- If the sale price should have been \$14 000, enter in -300. The minus sign can entered just by selecting the (either on the number pad or the key on the same row as the numbers) key on the keyboard. The figures will be displayed in red text and be in brackets (\$300.00).
- If the *GST Rate* was incorrect at time of purchase/sale it can be changed now. You do not have to adjust the price to change the GST rate. <Tab>
- Enter the *Salesman* who cancelled the sale. He will then be recorded in the Audit Trail. This is only available with the Auction version of EasyCars. <Tab>
- If you would like to Fax customer copy via modem tick this box. <Tab>
- Enter the Number of copies of Adjustment Notes required. <Tab>

000.00 to the acquisiti	on price
OK	Cancel

Step 3 – Select either <u>Update</u> or <u>Print</u>.

If the adjustment was to the Purchase Cost click on the <u>Update</u> button as there is no printing required.

• A message will be displayed confirming the adjustment. If you are happy to continue click *Ok*. The adjustment to the purchase price will now be made.

If the adjustment was to the Sale Price and you require a printed Adjustment Note click on the Print button.

- A message will be displayed asking if the Adjustment Note printed successfully.
- Once you answer <u>Yes</u> to this the adjustment will be made.

If you don't require a printed Adjustment Note just click <u>Update</u>.

Chapter

6

Chapter 6 : Sending and Receiving Information

This chapter explains how you are able to send and receive information to various places such as Jeal Computer Services, REVS, and many other online Advertisers.

Jeal Computer Services

From time to time it may be necessary to send your data here to us. To make this as easy as possible we have incorporated this into the EasyCars 2000 product. You can also retrieve your data from us and have it sent back onto your computer.

Send Data to Jeal

Step 1 – Make sure you are connected to the Internet.

Step 2 – Start EasyCars and from the File menu, select Send data file to Jeal.

Get Data from Jeal

Step 1 – Make sure you are connected to the Internet.

Step 2 – Start EasyCars and from the File menu, select Get data file from Jeal.

Car History

TO BE COMPLETED

Step 1 – From the File menu, select REVS Check.

Step 2 – The "*REVS Vehicle Check*" screen will be displayed and the <u>Check</u> screen will be ready for selections to be made.

				-	Ð	×
		4	*			
Date range	Update	Car History	Advertising			

Advertising

Setting up for Advertising

EasyCars can send your vehicles to various online advertisers. To get set up for using advertisers, call JCS on (02) 9623 6403. JCS will supply you with a Dealer Name, Username and Password depending on which advertiser is being sent to. To enter your advertising settings:

Step 1 – Click on the **Advertising** button, then click on the **Setup** tab and select the tab in the lower section with the name of the advertiser you are getting set up for.

Step 2 – Enter the Username, Password and or Dealer ID, depending on what is required.

Step 3 – Click back on the <u>**To Send**</u> tab. You are now ready to send for this advertiser.

Sending to Advertisers

Q. Ô 1 REVS JCSEVN Search Advertising Edit Create and Send Sheck Sta Select All Clear All Pri To Send Yard Used NCS NVIC code NEB Registration No ABC123 Make PEUGEOT Mode
 205 - S -* CountryCars.com.a JOD HATCHBACK + ٦Ì ECTRONIC F/II -- 1.6L - 5 SP MANUAL • Fue CarBuddy Colou BLACK - BEIG ÷ Wholesale Price Autoline \$3.000.00 \$0.00 -Send Pictures aut@capito AWDN quekka Next Invalid Sele

Step 1 – Click on the **Advertising** button. The "*Vehicles Transfer Selection*" window will appear showing your vehicles.

Step 2 – Select the vehicles to be sent to your advertisers by clicking on the registration or stock number of that vehicle. A selected vehicle will be coloured blue. You can select all vehicles by clicking on the <u>Select All</u> button and unselect all by clicking on the **Clea<u>r</u> All** button.

Step 3 – Select the advertisers you want to send to, in the <u>**To Send**</u> tab, click on the icon of the advertisers you want to use on the left, and make sure its tick box is ticked. To send the information click on the **Create and** <u>**Send**</u> button.

To check the status of your advertiser, un tick the icon of the advertiser you wish to check status on and tick it again and you will see the icon of the advertiser you selected in the top right-hand corner. If you click on the **Check Status** button, a webpage will be opened with your Internet browser showing the status of your vehicles sent to the particular advertiser selected in the top right.

<u>Notes</u>: In the <u>To Send</u> tab, if you click on one particular vehicle it will display that vehicle's details on the right hand side. Vehicles sent to advertisers can include photos and a description. This can be changed by editing the vehicle in the Stock screen under the Options tab.

You can also choose what type of info you want to send to the advertisers such as the Colour and Descriptions, by going to the **Setup** tab and in the *Send/Don't Send* section click on the *Select All* button under the name that you wish to select. You can also omit certain features by clicking on the *Unselect all* button under the name you wish to omit. While in the **Setup** tab there is also an Extra Description box which will be displayed on every car advertised.

EasyCars Car History Report uploads for dealers with a JCS website

1. EasyCars has two tick boxes at the bottom of the Web Pages tab in the Setup - Options screen.

General	Display	Stock Entry	y Selling				
Clients	Import	71					
Glasses	Web pages	Internet	Other				
Automatically select page	at newly acquired USED	vehicles for sending	to your web 🔽				
Automatically select newly acquired NEW vehicles for sending to your web page \blacksquare							
Automatically select newly acquired vehicles for sending to your preferred $\ensuremath{\ensuremath{\square}}$ Advertiser							
Automatically searc	ch vehicle description fo	r features to be marke	ed automatically 🔽				
Automatically mark description for inclusion in information sent to your preferred Advertiser							
Automatically mark Advertiser	pictures for inclusion in	information sent to yo	our preferred				
	t newly acquired vehicl vehicle to your website	es for including Vehic	le History Report				
Disable upload Veł report	nicle History report mess	age when obtaining a	a Car History 🛛				
Turn off scheduling on this computer only (requires a restart of EasyCars)							
This option s	hould only be used	under the directio	n of JCS staff.				
	e you run EasyCars, the der will not run automatic Dealer Web who	cally, and vehicles will					
	ок (Cancel Appl	hu (

2. There is also a line on the Options tab in the Stock screen: 'Include Vehicle History Report, if available, when sending this vehicle to your website'.

This box will automatically be ticked for any new vehicle added into stock, if the relevant box is ticked on the Setup – Options screen above.

Cash	Stock	A Reports	New PO	Pr	POs	Date range	Update 2	C	0 ar History	Advertising	S Quot	e Ask Tech a Question		
lvehicle	<u>E</u> dit	OrderBy	<u>S</u> earch	<	Eind >	Query	Browse	<	<u>P</u> revious	Next	>	New/Used	Status	In Stock
Debtor/recei	ipts	Costing	L J		Expenses	J	Orders			arranty expense	J	Notices	Invoices	
Vehicle		Options	L		Memo		Acquisition		Cre	ditor/payments	1	Floorplan	Disposal	Refresh
	Glass's	s Standard Extras					Glass's Optional Extras					Glass's No Cost Extras		- S Notice
														+
														Transfer
														Disposal
												Glass's Dealer Fitted Extras		
														Sell C
														Return
														₽
														Floorplan
Include this ve	hiclo whon cond	ing vehicles to you	web page				Include this	unhiele	whon conding	vehicles to your adve	orticing ci	to	V	Proposal
							include this	venicie	when senaing	renicies to your duve	erusing si	le		4
Include Vehicl	le History report,	if available, when s	ending this veh	icle to you	website									P'book
													Car History Information –	Cards
SR/CarHist	orv Result —													
oryounnot	ory recount													C¥ .
	-	O Result unknown		с	Passed	c) Failed							Renew
 Not done 		-		С	Passed	c								C¥ .
	-	-		c	Passed) Failed PPSR Certific	ate Date		v		PPSR Search Number		Renew Misc
	PPSR Certificate	-			Passed			ate Date		v		PPSR Search Number		Renew Misc Inspect
	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date	-	v		PPSR Search Number	Vehicle Picture –	Renew Misc
● Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date		.		PPSR Search Number	Vehicle Picture –	Renew Misc Clinspect Photos
● Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date		· ·	<	PPSR Search Number		Renew Misc Misc Inspect Photos Transport
● Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date		· ·	<u>×</u>			Renew Misc Clinspect Photos
● Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date		•	<u><</u>		Vehicle Picture –	Ca Renew ⊒ ⊒ Misc Ca Inspect Photos Transport Reprint
Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date		•	<u><</u>			CY Renew ⊒ Misc Inspect Photos Transport Reprint
Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date	-	•	<u>×</u>		Vehicle Picture –	Ca Renew ⊒ ⊒ Misc Ca Inspect Photos Transport Reprint
● Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date			<u>s</u>		Vehicle Picture –	Ca Renew ⊒ ⊒ Misc Ca Inspect Photos Transport Reprint
Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date			<u><</u>			Ca Renew ⊒ ⊒ Misc Ca Inspect Photos Transport Reprint
Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date			<u><u></u></u>		Vehicle Picture –	Ca Renew ⊒ ⊒ Misc Ca Inspect Photos Transport Reprint
Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date			<u>2</u>		Vehicle Picture –	Ca Renew ⊒ ⊒ Misc Ca Inspect Photos Transport Reprint
Not done	PPSR Certificate	e Number			Passed			ate Date			<u>2</u>		Vehicle Picture –	Ca Renew ⊒ ⊒ Misc Ca Inspect Photos Transport Reprint

3. Another Setup – Options tick box is 'Disable Upload Vehicle History report message when obtaining a Car History report'.

If left unticked, then when a new Car History report is requested, the dealer will see the following message:

Uploading Car History Report to Website	×	J
Do you want to make the Vehicle History report for this variable on your website to capture leads? This setting con the vehicle details screen at a later time. Upload Vehic report next time I upload vehicle details to my website?	an be changed	
<u>Y</u> es	<u>N</u> o	Click Yes
Uploading Car History Report to Website	×	
You have selected to upload the Vehicle History report to Please note, this feature is only available if you have a J website and with Search Engine Optimisation enabled. unsure regarding the status of your website, please con- confirm your website status.	CS compliant If you are	
	OK	Click 'OK' and PDF version of Car History report

is opened.

If the option box is ticked, the above messages will not appear.

4. The dealer may go back through previous stock and edit the 'Include Vehicle History Report, if available, when sending this vehicle to your website' option for any vehicle that he has a Car History report stored.

5. When the dealer first does an advertising feed for the website after making these changes, the Car History PDF files will be uploaded, and the details will appear in the feed file, similar to sending new photos.

(In subsequent feeds, only PDF files that have been changed since the last feed will be uploaded.)

NOTE: Only full Car History Reports will be uploaded, not PPSR certificates.

6. The dealer website will need to be updated by the JCS Web Design Team to reflect the new Car History options.

7. If a customer clicks on either the 'Click here' line under the photo of the car, or the Car History Report tab, or the 'Free Report' tick box to the right, they will be presented with a box asking for their name, e-mail address and phone number.



'Name' field requires a minimum of three alpha

characters.

'E-mail address' needs to be a valid e-mail address, as that is where the Car History report will be sent to.

'Telephone Number' needs to be eight or ten digits.

When completed, they click Submit. They then receive an e-mail with a PDF attachment of the Car History report.

8. The dealer also receives a copy of that e-mail, showing the clients contact details.

Chapter

Chapter 7: Printing Notices and Forms

This section explains the different notices, forms and reports that can be printed out by your EasyCars 2000 program. They have been arranged into two categories, Notices/Forms and Reports.

Printing Forms

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle you wish to print forms for. See Chapter 4 – "Searching" section.
Step 2 – If the correct vehicle is displayed and all details correct, click on the Notice button.

The "Print Forms" box will be displayed with the current vehicle selected and the correct form chosen.

Setup	Preview	Print				
<u>O</u> ptions	Advance	4) (E				
Stock Nur Built [Current f) ate 01/94	2 Rego A Distance Number This Form 4	,	123,456	Sell	PEUGEOT 205 \$3,000.00 <top copy="" printed=""></top>
Rep	int CURREN	el current form		Info Info Info		Missing information:
	copy: CURF			Info Info		
	Show this s	creen automa	tically v	vhen Form	information is	s changed 🔽

• If a different form is required then click <u>the tr</u>iangle in the *This Form* field. A drop down box will be displayed with all available forms. Select the appropriate form.



• Take note of any missing information in

<u>red</u>. The field names appearing in brackets are optional and do not have to be entered to produce the form. However fields that are not in brackets DO have to be entered to print the form and are required Police Book information.

Step 3 – Click on the <u>**Print**</u> button. If the form is printed correctly click *Ok* or press the **<Enter>** key.

• After confirming that the correct printer is being selected, click on *Ok*.

The forms should now be available at the printer and should be checked.

- If they printed correctly, answer <u>Yes</u> to the box being displayed on the screen.
- If they did not print correctly answer <u>No</u>. You will now be returned to the Notice screen. You can make the necessary changes and return to the Notice screen and select the Print option again.

tatus check	
Did the Notice print corr	ectly?

Reprinting Invoices for a Sold Vehicle

<u>Note</u>: Invoices are printed during the Selling process. See Selling Vehicles. If an error is found in an invoice, you may wish to reprint it.

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle. See Chapter 4 – "**Searching**" section.

Step 2 – Click on the Invoices tab.

<u>Note</u>: The most recent invoice will be highlighted. If this is not the one that you wish to reprint, select the correct invoice by clicking the empty column to the left of the invoice date.



Step 3 - Click on the Reprint button.

	_		
itock Rego M	Reprint lake	Invoice Model	Colour
2 ABC123 P	EUGEOT	205	BLACK
		1	
tions			
Print heading		Number of copies	2
Standard text	•	Top margin (inches)	0.50 *
Custom text Include logo left	с Г	Left margin (inches)	1.00 +
Include logo right		Bottom margin (inches)	0.50
Print borders	2	Right margin (inches)	0.00

The *Reprint Invoice/Print Credit Note* screen will be displayed.

• You can change any of the options required here for printing the Invoice.

Step 4 – Click on the Print button.

• After confirming that the correct printer is being selected, click on *Ok*.

• The Invoice should now be available at the printer and should be checked.

• If they printed correctly answer <u>Y</u>es to the box that is now being displayed on the screen.

• If they did not print correctly answer <u>No</u>. You will now be returned to the Invoices screen. If the amount is incorrect you will have to Cancel the sale and make the relevant changes and proceed from there.

RTA Disposal Forms

For Multiple Vehicles

Step 1 – To automatically have all current vehicles selected (vehicles needing the transfer notice printed), on the **Notices/Forms** menu select **Acquisition and Disposal Transfers** then select **Disposals** – with the name of the respective state **EasyCare 2000 v402155: The Professional Car Dealer – Client Code: 1490 – User Master Account – (Stock By Stock Nutret – included).**

	Police Book						
St	Acquisition	and Disposal T	ransfers	•	Acquisitions - NSW		
ehicle	Registratio	n Renewals			Disposals - NSW		
Vehrore	Browse All	0110	Acquisitions - Victoria Disposals - Victoria				
Debtor/receipts			Costin	ng	Disposais - victoria		
		N.			Acquisitions - Queensland Disposals - Queensland		
Date	Туре	Invoice	Printed	Cance	Acquisitions - Western Australia		
07-09-2009	C	2	2	0			
	A	3	0		Disposals - Western Australia		
	ehicle Vehrore ebtor/receip Date	St Acquisition ehicle Registratio Browse All Vehicle bbtor/receipts	St Acquisition and Disposal T Registration Renewals Browse All Notices Vehicine Date Type Invoice	St Acquisition and Disposal Transfers Registration Renewals Browse All Notices Vehace Oppose bibtor/receipts Costin	St Acquisition and Disposal Transfers ehicle Registration Renewals Browse All Notices Options Vehice Options obtor/receipts Costing Date Type Invoice Printed Cance		

The Print Notice of Disposal screen will be displayed.

Step 2 – Select Vehicles to be included.

Setup P	re <u>v</u> iew	Print				
0wner ve	hicles [<u>C</u> onsig	ned vehic	les		
`	Yard The F	^o rofessio	nal Car Dea	ler 💌		
61	D Notice(s		posal - Ow	ned Vehi	cles	
Stock No	Rego	Acq	Sold	Print?	Printed?	Make
•						•
Layout 💿	Bulk	O Sing	le	Select All	Cle	ear All
lame of perso	on effecting I	transfer:			ate sent: 8-09-2009	* *

• Only vehicles due to be printed will be highlighted. If more vehicles need to be selected, click on each vehicle with the mouse.

• Select *Bulk* for multiple vehicles.

• You can enter the *Name of person effecting the transfer* to be printed on the form.

- Change the *Date sent* if you need to.
- Preview to see if satisfactory.
- Click on <u>Print to print the report to be sent to the RTA</u>.

For Single Vehicles

Note: This option will only include the vehicle you currently have on the stock screen.

Step 1 – Click on the Disposal button or press <Shift> + <F4>.

The "Print Notice of Disposal" screen will be displayed.

- Change the layout to *Single* for the one vehicle.
- You can enter the Name of person affecting the transfer to be printed on the form.
- Change the *Date sent* if you need to.
- Preview to see if satisfactory.
- Click on Print to print the report to be sent to the RTA.

RTA Acquisition Forms

For Multiple Vehicles

Step 1 – To automatically have all current vehicles selected (vehicles needing the transfer notice printed), from the <u>Notices/Forms</u> menu, select Acquisition and Disposal Transfers then select Acquisitions.





Cancel

\$

Owned	vehicles	Consigned	vehicles		
	Yard The F	Professional C	ar Dealer	~	
	Transfer(s)	of Registrat	ion into Dea		
Stock No	Rego	Expiry	Acquired		Printed? 1
	AG65HY	07-09-2009	07-09-2009		No 1
2	ABC123	07-11-2009	07-09-2009	P Yes	No 1
▲ August	⊙ Bulk	O Single	Select	t All	Clear All
lame of p	erson effecting I	ransfer:		Date ser 08-09-20	

Step 2 – Select Vehicles to be included.

• Only vehicles due to be printed will be highlighted. If more vehicles need to be selected, click on each vehicle with the mouse.

• Select *Bulk* for multiple vehicles.

• You can enter the *Name of person affecting the transfer* to be printed on the form.

- Change the *Date sent* if not correct.
- Click on <u>Print to print the report to be sent to the RTA.</u>

For a Single Vehicle

Note: This option will only include the vehicle you currently have on the stock screen.

Step 1 – Click on the Transfer button or press <Shift> + <F3>.

The 'Print Transfer of Registration to Dealer' screen will be displayed.

- Select *Single* for one vehicle.
- You can enter the Name of person affecting the transfer to be printed on the form.
- Change the *Date sent* if not correct.
- Click on <u>Print to print the report to send to the RTA</u>.

Police Book

For all stock

Step 1 – From the <u>Notices/Forms</u> menu, select Police Book then Police Book/Consignment Book and then select the *State* you are in.

EasyCars 2000 v4.02.	155: The Professiona	Print Police Book/Consig	nments Book		Stock: By Stock Number - Ve	hicle Count: 2]
🛊 File 🛛 Data Entry 🗍	Notices/Forms Rep	<u>S</u> etup Pre <u>v</u> iew <u>P</u> ri	at		p	
S d EasyCash St	Police Book Acquisition and				/Consignments Book	ACT NSW
Add vehicle	Registration Rei	Dealer Licence 12345			:5	NT
Vetm	Browse All Noti	1 Police Book Page(s Page From To		ents Page(s) rom To Up	Memo	QLD SA
Debtor/rec	Pipts				xpenses	TAS
Deto	Tupo				count Extrac Floornia	VIC WA
	TV22				roount Extrac Floomin	WA
	TVD2	Select All Clear		Clear All	scount Extrac Floomin	WA
Deta	Type		All Select All		scount Extrac Floomis	WA
Deto	Tuno	Select All Clear Print only those pages which	All Select All Print only those	pages which	soount Evtres Eloomie	WA



Proposal CQ

P'book

Cards

(M

Renew

三

Misc

The "Print Police Book/Consignment Book" screen will be displayed.

Step 2 – Use the mouse to select or deselect the pages that you wish to print.

- Tick the options as required.
- Ensure that there is a tick in *Print only those pages which need updating* if you don't require all pages to be printed.
- You can use the Select All or Clear All buttons if all are required.

Step 3 – Click the Preview button if you are unsure of your selection.

<u>Note</u>: Printing cannot be done from the **Preview** screen. Close the window by selecting the <u>File</u> menu and then <u>Exit</u> or click on the x in the top right hand corner.

Step 4 – Click on the **Print** button.

- After confirming that the correct printer is being selected, click on *Ok*.
- The report should now be available at the printer and should be checked.
- If they printed correctly, answer <u>Yes</u> to the box that will be displayed on the screen. The page will now be shown as being printed.
- If they did not print correctly answer <u>No</u>. Nothing will be updated and you will now be returned to the Stock screen.

For a Specific Vehicle

If you require the Police Book Information to be printed for a specific vehicle and you are unsure of what page this information is on you can perform the following steps.

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle – see Chapter 4 – "Searching" section.

Step 2 - Click on the P'book button or press <Shift> + <F10>.

The "*Print Police Book/Consignment Book*" screen will be displayed with the page highlighted for the vehicle.

Step 3 – Click the Preview button if you are unsure of your selection.

<u>Note</u>: Printing cannot be done from the **Preview** screen. Close the window by selecting the <u>File</u> menu and then **Exit** or click on the **x** in the top right hand corner.

Step 4 – Click on the **Print** button.

- After confirming that the correct printer is being selected, click on Ok.
- The report should now be available at the printer and should be checked.
- If they printed correctly answer <u>Yes</u> to the box that will be displayed on the screen. The page will now be shown as being printed.
- If they did not print correctly answer <u>No</u>. Nothing will be updated and you will now be returned to the Stock screen.

Log of Changes

\$.	Police Book		
	POILE DOOK	•	Police (Dealings) Book/Consignments Book
EasyCash St	Acquisition and Disposal Transfers	•	Log of Changes
Add vehicle	Registration Renewals		Browse Log of Changes

Step 1 – From the Notices/Forms menu, select Police Book then Log of Changes

The "Print Police Book Log of Changes" screen will be displayed.

Step 2 – Make selections for printing.

Sing Program INI Propose Yes Verification Verification Yes Include only pages Press and yes Press and yes Press Tables Press and yes Press and yes Press tables on the press Press and yes Press and yes Press tables on the press tables to be pressed to the downlow and the downlow and the the press Press and yes Press tables on the press tables to be pressed to the downlow and the do	Update RIVS	Advertising	JCSEVN Search	Quete			
Pageor Days Vint Include only pages of page Part of pages Part of pages Pages and changes to your flagslam Parks flags the Days Market Pages rates changes to your flagslam Parks flags the Days and the Parks of an Orace set of the Parks flagslam P	Ever						
Headshow Ved Includes only pages only pro- Pried by pages Presed for a sineback study Drick Number Prips make changes to and Rappen and in transmiss held in the For This Lay of Comparison to an advance on the Internet Net Int on For This Lay of Comparison to an advance on the Internet Net Int on For This Lay of Comparison to an advance on the Internet Net Into The State of Comparison to an advance on the Internet Net Into The State Of Comparison to an advance on the Internet Net In							
Headfords Ved Includes only pages only pro- Pered to a softward status Preside to a softward status Proce Manager Proce Manager to your Register Parks Boost, the Department of Pairs of Manager to your Register Parks Boost, the Department of Pairs of Manager to your Register Parks Boost, the Department of Pairs of Manager to your Register Parks Boost, the Department of Pairs of Pairs and Pairs and Pairs Boost, the Department of Pairs of Pairs and Pairs and Pairs Boost, the Department of Pairs Pairs and Pairs and Pairs and Pairs Boost, the Department of Pairs Pairs and Pairs and Pairs and Pairs and Pairs and Pairs and Pairs and Pairs Pairs and Pairs							
Include only pages storp on Partial pages Present or a selected into Dock Number Pyon make changes to your Paylos Dock to Department of P This Log Changes list and Tanges make internation Mell on the Pio Tang Log Changes list and Tanges make internation Mell on the Pio Tang Department of the top test period CM 2 (* *	08-09-2009			• .	Show print dialog	R	
Include only pages storp on Partial pages Present or a selected into Dock Number Pyon make changes to your Paylos Dock to Department of P This Log Changes list and Tanges make internation Mell on the Pio Tang Log Changes list and Tanges make internation Mell on the Pio Tang Department of the top test period CM 2 (* *				-	(Blank for all)		
Print groups Print for a site of a site Direct Name Print and charges to your Register Poiles Doord, the Digester Hold This Log of Doorges Issa at always mode to characteria for all of the Poiles and point of the Site of Site of Site 19 point and point of the Site of Site of Site 19 point and point of the Site of Site of Site 19 point and point of Site of Site of Site of Site 19 point and point of Site of Site of Site of Site 19 point and point of Site of Site of Site of Site 19 point of Site of Site of Site of Site of Site of Site 19 point of Site of Site of Site of Site of Site of Site Site of Site of Site Site of Site o	<i>6</i>				(united in any		
Print groups Print for a site of a site Direct Name Print and changes to your Register Poiles Doord, the Digester Hold This Log of Doorges Issa at alwages mode talements held in the For Tale Card Doorges Issa at Stanges mode talements held in the For Tale point of the point of the talement of the Issa * alwages are pointed to the print of the Talement * alwages are pointed to the print of the	authorized						
Private the solided dtod Book Number Flyon make charges to your Register (Police Book, The Department of The Log of Charges Into all charges made to information held in the $D^{-1}_{\rm RE}$ Log of Charges Into all charges made to information held in the $D^{-1}_{\rm RE}$ Exp(Cars recent) that the Log has been privated OLX/F is "all pages are privated to the private, and of "only openandy angular faced as an include."	on hunda				0		
Book Number $\label{eq:started} Flyon make charges to your Register (Pairice Book I), the Department of P This Log of Charges Intel all charges made to information held in the P This Log No. 2014 The This P The P This P The P This P The P This P $	and the sector				0		
If you make changes to your Register (Parice Book, the Department of F This Leg of Changes last all changes made to information held in the Pel EaryCoars access that the Log has been protect ONLY 2. • all angoing are protect to the priority, and • only previously unprinted records are included.	runter ony				v		
This Log of Changes lists all changes made to information held in the Pol EasyCars records that the Log has been printed ONLY if. * all pages are printed to the printer, and * only previously unprinted records are included.				-			
* all pages are printed to the printer, and * only previously unprinted records are included.		ao a sept a se		e any count	o o seecolo, eno se sere o seu clienge o seecolo.		
Yn ar negaette nae' lachge if yw daa it lach oo a wer. W							
	strongly suggest that you ad	opt a system of	rotating daily bac	kups, and k	ep backups in a safe place away from your business premises.		
Fier'E ayCariJeal Stok.ndb						085ep-2009	121 PM

• If the Show Print Dialog Box if ticked print dialog box will be displayed, allowing you to choose which pages to print and how many copies.

• Include only pages not previously printed. This option will allow only new changes to be printed.

• *Print all Pages* this will print all pages even previously printed pages. In the print dialog you can specifically select pages that you wish to print.

• Print for a selected stock no only. Using drop-down menu, select stock number to be printed.

Step 3 – Click the Preview button if you want

to check before printing.

<u>Note</u>: Printing cannot be done from the **Preview** screen. Close the window by clicking on the <u>File</u> menu and then <u>Exit</u> or click on the X in the top right hand corner.

Step 4 – Press the Print button.

- After confirming that the correct printer has been selected, click on Ok.
- The report should now be available at the printer and should be checked.
- If they printed correctly answer <u>Yes</u> to the box that is now being displayed on the screen. This will mark all changes as being printed and reduce the size of the next report.
- If they did not print correctly answer <u>No</u>. Nothing will be updated and you will now be returned to the Stock screen.

Consignment Memorandum Form

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle – see Chapter 4 – "Searching" section.

Step 2 – When the correct vehicle is displayed, click on the miscellaneous button. *Print Option Screen*" will be displayed and the <u>Options</u> tab will be displayed.

- Enter the date to appear on the form.
- Printer settings may be altered if required.

Step 3 – Select the Contract Text 1 tab.

- If you would like a fancy heading on your form you can enter it in the *Consignment Contract Heading* using standard word processing as provided on the task bar.
- If you require additional text it can be entered in the *Text before Description* of vehicle box.

Step 4 – The first time this option is run you will need to import the contract text.

- Select the *Contract Text* <u>2</u> tab.
- Select the Import icon.



Select	t print optio	n		
Setup	Preview	Print		100
	<u>Options</u>	T T	Contract Text 1	Contract Text 2
	⊟ ∥ #	X B C	B I U ≣ ≣	
10000	9 9 4 2	X 🖻 🖻] <u>B</u> <i>I</i> <u>U</u> <u>≡</u> ₹	



Exit or click on the x in the top right hand corner.

Step 8 – Click on the **Print** button.

- After confirming that the correct printer is being selected, click on Ok.
- The report should now be available at the printer and should be checked.
- If they printed correctly answer Yes to the box that now will being displayed on the screen.
- If they did not print correctly answer <u>No</u>.

Printing Reports

(Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000, users with Easy Cars Lite have an Unsold Stock Report Only)

Most of the standard reports with EasyCars are generated using similar printing options and are selfexplanatory. To avoid repetition here we will outline the basics that are used by most reports. We will highlight any exceptions to this on the individual report.

Previewing and printing the reports are all done in the same manner.

Report Selection Criteria

- Report Date This is the date that will show on the report as the date printed. This does not have to be the same as the Date From – Date To.
- As at Date The date you want data to be included to.
- Note on Selecting Dates. If the date you wish to enter is today's date, press the <F2> key. If you would
 like to select a date from a calendar, click on the triangle at the end of the date field and a calendar
 will be displayed. Page through the calendar using the left and right arrows. Select the date required
 by clicking on it. This date will now be entered in the date field.
- Print Sequence The order in which you want the data to be sorted.
- Other Fields Drop-down boxes Click on the triangle at the end of the box then select from the list provided.

• Ensure the path that is selected is where your EasyCars program is installed. This is usually C:\Program Files\EasyCars\

• Highlight the *ConsText.rft*. This will now appear in the *File name* field.

• Select Open.

Step 6 – The Declaration by Consignor should be displayed on your screen. You must read the text and make any adjustments if necessary. These adjustments will be saved on exiting of this screen.

Step 7 – Click the **Preview** button if you want to check before printing.

<u>Note</u>: Printing cannot be done from the **Preview** screen. Close the window by clicking on the <u>File</u> menu and then

on the

X

Stocktake by days in stock: as at Tuesday, 8 September 2009

 Query Name – A temporary query can be used to filter the information to appear on the report. See Chapter 4 – "Searching" for multiple vehicles for more details on how to write a Query. To utilize the query feature select the <u>Query</u> button and either run an existing query or write a new query prior to previewing the report.

Previewing a Report on the screen

	Once you have m	ade your report selection	ons you must	previe	w the report		
<u>S</u> etup	Query	Graph	Pre⊻iew		Print		
	Options		Advanced	ł			
	Report Date	08-09-2009	+ 	Stockte	ake date	08-09-2009	* - *
Nev	w&Used	O New Vehic	les Only		O Used Veh	nicles Only	
L	Yard	The Professional Car Dealer					—

The report will then be displayed on the screen. From here you can do 3 things.

Beck Figned Stop	 1 - 1 - 10 - 11 - 10 - 11 - 12 - 11 - 12 - 11 - 12 - 11 - 12 - 11 - 12 - 11 - 12 - 11 - 12 - 11 - 12 	Page through the report using the arrows	
T m Deglessional Car Dealer Dealer Licence 1250 Stock Built No Data Make Model Details In stock more than 4 days In stock 4 to 4 days In stock 4 to 3 days	Stocktak As At Turesday, 8 September 200 Turesday, 8 September 200 Acquisition Acq Code () Network Code Network Code ()	19 19	
In stock 2 to 2 days 1 / MITSUBISHI TRITON MX	AG85HY 07-Sep-09 1,387.82 155.45 1,543 112.18 14.55 128 1,500.00 170.00 1,670.0	the File menu	Close
2 0164 PEUGEOT 205 SI	ABC123 07-5ep-49 2,772 7 0.00 2,772 7 ABC123 07-5ep-49 2,772 7 0.00 2,772 7 3,000.00 0.00 3,500 3,500 4,415,89 155,45 4,270, 34,415,89 155,45 3,990 4,470,4	77 73 14 46	the Report by clicking

Printing specific pages only

Print General Select Printer Kyocera FS-1030D on JCS08 Kyocera FS-1030D on JCS08 Send To OneNote 2007 Status: Opening Location: Comment: Page Range All Number of gopies: 1	 If you only want to print specific pages of a report, this can be done by first previewing the report to determine the page number(s). When the print dialog box is displayed enter the page number(s) required. In the example shown below there are 3 pages to the report and I only want to print the first page. I have also requested 2 copies.
C Selection C Current Page Pages: 1-2 Enter either a single page range. For example, 5-12	Enter number of copies required
	Select the page number(s) required Eter View
<i>Viewing data in graph form.</i> Some reports allow you to view the results of the If the report you are using utilises this feature the button on the toolbar.	

Not all print sequences allow data to be shown in a graphical format. Change the print sequence until the Graph button can be selected.

The standard graph is a bar chart, but you can easily change this display. To do this once you have the graph displayed select the View menu option and choose the style that best suits you.

Exporting Report Data

Once you have made your report selections, you must preview the report by selecting the *Preview* button on the toolbar. Once the report is on the screen, select the drop down menu *File* and choose the Export Option that best suits your requirements.

Stocktake Report

Step 1 – From the **<u>Reports</u>** menu, select Stocktake.

The "Print Stocktake Report" screen is displayed.

- There are two pages for this report selection. They should both be checked before printing to determine what will show on the report.
- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included in the report.

Step 2 – Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Click on the **<u>G</u>raph** button to view your data in this manner.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to
 modify your print sequence until the <u>Graph</u> button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting *File* then *Print*.

Unsold Stock Report

Step 1 – From the **Reports** menu, select Unsold Stock.

The "Print Unsold Stock Report" screen is displayed.

- There are 2 pages to this report selection. They should both be checked before printing to determine what will show on the report.
- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included in the report.

Step 2 – Click the **Preview** button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Click on the **<u>G</u>raph** button to view your data in this manner.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to modify your print sequence until the <u>Graph</u> button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting *File* then *Print*.

Acquisitions/General stock lists

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select Acquisition/General stock list.

The "Print Acquisitions Report" screen is displayed.

- There are 2 pages to this report selection. They should both be checked before printing to determine what will show on the report.
- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included in the report.

Step 2 – Click the **Preview** button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Click on the **<u>G</u>raph** button to view your data in this manner.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to
 modify your print sequence until the <u>Graph</u> button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting *File* then *Print*.

Profit On Sold Stock Report

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select Sold Stock then select Profit on Sold Stock.

The "Print Sold Stock Profit Report" screen is displayed.

- There are 2 pages to this report selection. They should both be checked before printing to determine what will show on the report.
- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains
 a tick or a dot will be included in the report.
- By changing the print sequence to be *Last Name/Company (Acq 1)* you can easily see the profit made on vehicles that were purchased from either private persons or wholesalers.
- Subtotals will be included if the print sequence is either *Last Name/Company* (Acq 1) or *Dealer Licence* (Acq 1).

Step 2 – Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Click on the **<u>G</u>raph** button to view your data in this manner.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to
 modify your print sequence until the <u>Graph</u> button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting <u>File</u> then <u>Print</u>.

Debtors Report

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select Sold Stock then select Debtors.

The "Print Debtors Report" screen is displayed.

- This report will list money that is owed to you for vehicles that you have sold.
- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included in the report.
- By changing the print sequence to be either *Last Name/Company (Disp 1)* or *Dealer Licence (Disp 1)* you can easily see the total amount owed to you by Dealers or private persons.
- If you have vehicles listed here that have been paid either in whole or in part, you will have to return to the stock screen and record these payments. This is done on the Debtor/Receipts tab. See page 48 for further information on this.

Step 2 – Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **<u>P</u>rint** button to print the report.

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Click on the **<u>G</u>raph** button to view your data in this manner.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to
 modify your print sequence until the <u>Graph</u> button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting *File* then *Print*.

Payments Received on Sold Stock

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select Sold Stock then select Payments Received on Sold Stock.

The "Payments received on Sold Stock" screen is displayed.

- This report lists all payments that have been paid to you for vehicle purchases. If there are payments here that are incorrect you will have to return to the stock screen and amend these payments. This is done on the Debtor/Receipts tab see page 48 for further information.
- Select to print all payment types or specific types only.

Step 2 – Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

Salesman's Commission Report

Step 1 – Click on the <u>Reports</u> menu, select Sold Stock then select Salesman's Commission.

The "Print Salesman's Commission on Sold Stock Report" screen is displayed.

- There are 2 pages to this report selection. They should both be checked before printing to determine what will show on the report.
- The salesman who acquired and/or sold the vehicle must be entered on the acquisition or sale screens must be included in the report.
- For commission percentages to be calculated you must enter the salesman's commission on the Salesman's Lookup List see Chapter 3 for future details on this.
- Use the mouse to select the fields you want included in the report. Any field containing a tick or a dot will be included in the report.
- If you would like the report printed and sorted based on the Acquisition Salesman the Print Sequence must be Acquisition Salesman.
- If you would like the report printed and sorted based on the Disposal Salesman the Print Sequence must be Disposal Salesman.

Step 2 – Click the **Preview** button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **<u>P</u>rint** button to print the report.

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Simply click on the Graph button.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to
 modify your print sequence until the <u>Graph</u> button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting *File* then *Print*.

Salesman's Average Profit Report

Step 1 - Click on the Reports menu, select Sold Stock then select Salesman's Average Profit.

The "Print Salesman's Average Profit Report" screen is displayed.

• The salesman who acquired and/or sold the vehicle must be entered on the acquisition or sale screens must be included in the report.

- For commission percentages to be calculated you must enter the salesman's commission on the Salesman's Lookup List see Chapter 3 for further details on this.
- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included in the report.
- If the Print Sequence is set to *Acquisition Salesman/Acquired From* the report will show whom the vehicles were purchased from and the profit when sold.
- If the Print Sequence is set to *Disposal Salesman/Sold To* the report will show who the vehicles were sold to and the profit when sold.

Step 2 - Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **<u>P</u>rint** button to print the report.

Invoice List

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select Sold Stock then select Invoice List.

The "Print Invoice List" screen is displayed.

- This report will list invoices that have been produced for vehicles you have sold.
- Select to print All Invoice types or specific types only.

Step 2 – Click the **Preview** button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **<u>P</u>rint** button to print the report.

Floorplan Outstanding Report

Step 1 – From the **<u>Reports</u>** menu, select Floorplan Outstanding.

The "Print Floorplan Report" screen is displayed.

- In order to subtotal the Floorplan amounts the Print Sequence should be *Finance Company* or *Last* Name/Company (Acq 1).
- If the amounts on this report are incorrect you will have to return to the Creditor/Payments tab to make the relevant changes see Chapter 4 for further details on how to do this.
- Step 2 Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Click on the **<u>G</u>raph** button to view your data in this manner.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to
 modify your print sequence until the <u>Graph</u> button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting *File* then *Print*.

Creditors Outstanding Report

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select Creditors Outstanding.

The "Print Creditors Report" screen is displayed.

- This report lists everyone you owe money to for the purchase of vehicles.
- If the amounts on this report are incorrect you will have to return to the Creditor/payments tab to make the relevant changes. See Chapter 4 for further details on how to do this.
- In order to subtotal the amounts the Print Sequence should be *Last Name/Company (Acq 1).*

Step 2 – Click the **Preview** button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **<u>Print</u>** button to print the report.

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Click on the Graph to view this.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to
 modify your print sequence until the <u>Graph</u> button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting *File* then *Print*.

Floorplan / Creditors Repayments Report

Step 1 – Click on the Reports menu, select Floorplan/Creditors repayments.

The "Print Floorplan/Creditors Repayments" screen is displayed.

- This report will show payments made by you to Creditors and Floorplan companies.
- In order to subtotal the amounts the Print Sequence should be *Last Name/Company (Acq 1)*.

Step 2 – Click the Preview button to view document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **<u>P</u>rint** button to print the report.

Matched Debtors / Creditors Report

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select, the Matched Debtors/Creditors report.

The "Print Matched Debtors/Creditors Report" is displayed.

• This report will show the balance due as at any date for all vehicles purchased and sold subtotalling purchase/buyers.

Step 2 – Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the <u>Print</u> button to print the report.

Accrual Basis Report GST Business Activity Statement.

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select GST then select Business Activity Statement GST Report Accruals (Non-Cash) Basis.

This report is for use if you are reporting on an accruals (non-cash) basis. If you are unsure of the accounting method you should be using please check with your accountant.

The "Print BAS GST Report – Accruals" screen is displayed.

• By entering the usual reporting period, and after successfully printing the entire report, BAS period dates will be automatically carried over and closed off.

Step 2 – Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the <u>P</u>rint button to print the report.

IMPORTANT NOTE:

If the final report has been printed and is <u>correct</u>, click <u>Yes</u>. All GST transactions will be marked and recorded in that accounting period. If any of those transactions are altered the entire report must be reprinted.

NOTE: All accounting periods must be finalised to prevent transactions being recorded in next accounting periods.

	-210
Did the report print co	rrectly?

IMPORTANT NOTES:
- EasyCars does NOT produce a complete Business Activity Statement GST report. You will also need to take into account other supplies (e.g. Commissions received on the sale of finance) and other acquisitions (e.g. Expenses such as electricity and rent).
- If your BAS report does not look right it may be because you still have vehicles in "Awaiting Tax Invoice" status. Any vehicle left in this status will not have the credit for the purchase included in any BAS report, until the status is changed to either Tax Invoice Provided or Non Registered.
 To locate these vehicles you can execute the following query on the stock screen:

Query Type in the value or expression to use when looking for matching records Fields Operators: Value or Expression [Stock].Drivers Licence (Acq 1) [Stock].Licence Expiry Date (Acq 1) [Stock].GST Registered (Acq 1) True $\langle \rangle$ 8 >= <= [Stock].Tax Invoice Received Date [Stock]. Tax Invoice Received Number [Stock].No Tax Invoice [Stock].First Name (Acq 2) Empty And Or Like Select where: [Stock].[Awaiting Tax Invoice] = True

Cash Basis Report GST Business Activity Statement

Step 1 – From the Reports menu, select GST then Business Activity Statement GST report Cash Basis.

This report is for use if you are reporting on a cash basis. If you are unsure of the accounting method you should be using please check with your accountant.

The "Print BAS GST Report - Cash Basis" screen is displayed.

- By entering the usual reporting period, and after successfully printing the entire report, BAS period dates will be automatically carried over.
- The Cash Basis report reflects payments and receipts as shown in the stock screen at the time of printing. Once the report has been printed for a period and your BAS has been finalised, you must not make changes/additions/deletions, which affect the completed period (eg: If you forgot to enter a date paid for an expense, enter the date as the first day of the next period so it will be claimed in the next report).
- You MUST ensure ALL Receipts, Creditor Payments and Trade Allowances are entered accurately. If you are using expenses information from this report, 'Date Paid' must be entered. If you have floorplan, dates, amounts and curtailment payments MUST be entered accurately.
- Do NOT change information for a period for which a BAS has already been completed.

Step 2 - Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **<u>P</u>rint** button to print the report.

IMPORTANT NOTE:

If the final report has been printed and is <u>correct</u>, click <u>Yes</u>. All GST transactions will be marked and recorded in that accounting period. If any of those transactions are altered the entire report must be reprinted.

IMPORTANT NOTES:

<u>NOTE</u>: EasyCars does NOT produce a complete Business Activity Statement GST report. You will also need
to take into account other supplies (e.g. commissions received on the sale of finance) and other
acquisitions (e.g. expenses such as electricity and rent).

If your BAS report does not look right it may be because you still have vehicles in "Awaiting Tax Invoice" status. Any vehicle left in this status will not have the credit for the purchase included in any BAS report, until the status is changed to either Tax Invoice Provided or Non Registered.
 To locate these vehicles you can execute the following query on the stock screen:

Fields:		Operators:	Value or Expressio	n:
[Stock].Drivers Licence (Acq 1) [Stock].Licence Expiry Date (Acq 1) [Stock].GST Registered (Acq 1)	*		True	ÿ
[Stock] Awaiting Tax Invoice [Stock]. Tax Invoice Received Date [Stock]. Tax Invoice Received Number [Stock]. No Tax Invoice [Stock]. First Name (Acq 2)	•	<= > < Empty Like	And	<u>D</u> r

GST Transactions by Stock Number

Step 1 – From the **<u>Reports</u>** menu, select GST then select GST transaction by Stock Number.

The "Print GST transaction by Stock Number" screen is displayed.

• Select stock number or leave blank for selecting all stock.

Step 2 – Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

Browse GST Transactions

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select GST then select Browse Transactions.

rite Data	entry Notices	rorms Repor	ts JCSEVN Se	tup U	poste View V	window	пер				
\$ iasyCash	at Stock	Reports	New PO	Prev	POs Date	ange	San Update	REVS Advertising JCSEVN	l Search	\$ Quote	
10											H 4
Transactio	on Supply Type	TransType	Date	Stock.	Amount Inc GST	Tax Rate	Tax Amount	Document ID Description	Notional	Printed	Previous Record
	1 Acquisition	NC	07-Sep-2009	1	\$1,500.00		\$0.00	0 Acquisition with no GST in p		No	
	4 Acquisition	Baiment	07-Sep-2009	1	\$1,500.00		\$112.18	0 Notional Input Credit on bail	Yes	No	
	5 Supply	Balment	07-Sep-2009	1	\$1,234.00		\$112.18	1 GST on bailment		No	
	7 Supply	Sale	07-Sep-2009	2	\$3,000.00	10.00	\$272.73	2 GST on sale		No	
	8 Supply	Adjust	07-Sep-2009	2	-\$3,000.00		\$272.73	3 Cancellation of sale		No	07.Sep 09
	9 Supply	Sale	07-Sep-2009	2	\$3,000.00		\$272.73	4 GST on sale		No	Net control and
	10 Supply	Adjust	07-Sep-2009	2	-\$3,000.00		-\$272.73	5 Cancellation of sale		No	07.Sep-09
	11 Supply	Sale	07-Sep-2009	1	\$0.00	10.00	\$0.00	6 GST on sale		No	
	12 Supply	Adjust	07-Sep-2009	1	\$0.00	10.00	\$0.00	7 Cancellation of sale		No	07.Sep.09

The "Browse GST Transactions" screen is displayed.

 Using the Browse transactions option allows you to view all GST records for stock and individually select them.

<u>Hint</u>: To change the order in which the vehicles are sorted, click on the heading of the column in which you want the vehicles sorted. This will automatically re-sort the vehicles.

Expenses / Orders / Warranty Expenses Report

Step 1 – From the **Reports** menu, select Expenses/Orders/Warranty Expenses.

The "Print Expenses/Orders/Warranty Expenses Report" screen is displayed.

- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains
 a tick or a dot will be included in the report.
- To print sub totals for Contractors set the Print Sequence to Contractors.
- Step 2 Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the Print button to print the report.

Warranty Profit

Step 1 – From the Reports menu, select Warranty Profit

The "Print Warranty Profit Report" screen is displayed.

- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included in the report.
- Step 2 Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.
- Step 3 Click the Print button to print the report

Step 4 – This report also allows you to view this data in a graphical format. Click on the **<u>G</u>raph** button to view your data in this manner.

- Only some of the Print Sequence types allow the report to be viewed in this manner. You will have to modify your print sequence until the *Graph* button can be selected (not greyed out).
- Once you have your graph on the screen you can print it by selecting *File* then *Print*.

Incomplete Police Book / Notice Information

Step 1 – From the <u>Reports</u> menu, select Incomplete Police Book/Notice Information.

The "Print Incomplete Police Book / Notices Information" screen is displayed.

> Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included in the report.

Step 2 - Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 3 – Click the Print button to print the report.

Stock Cards

(Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

For Multiple Vehicles

Step 1 – From the **<u>Reports</u>** menu, select Stock Cards.

The Print "Stock Cards" screen is displayed with the Vehicles tab ready for selections to be made.

- Highlight the vehicles you wish to print stock cards for. You can do this by selecting the vehicles with the mouse or using the Unsold, Sold or Select All buttons.
- You can select vehicles that were acquired/sold between specific dates by entering the date required.

Step 2 – Select the Options 1 tab to determine what you want printed on the report.

- Use the mouse to select the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included in the report. Print Stock Cards
- You select all fields by clicking on the Select All button.
- You can clear all selections by clicking on the Clear All button.
- Click on the More... button to move to the Options 2 tab and complete what is required there.
- Step 3 Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 4 – Click the Print button to print the report.

For a Single Vehicle

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle. See Chapter 4 – "Searching" section.

Step 2 – When the correct vehicle is displayed, click on the Cards button.

The Print "Stock Cards" screen is displayed and the Vehicles tab is ready for selections to be made.

- Select Stock Card from the box now displayed.
- The vehicle you were working with will now be highlighted in the list.
- Use the mouse to select the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a . dot will be included in the report.









Print Vehicle Description Cards

Hide Entry Nos

Query Setup Pre<u>v</u>iew Web Print Email

1 Description Card(s) Entry No Make M

The Professional Car Dealer 💌

O New Vehicles Only O Used Vehicles Only

Vehicles Options 1 Options 2 Web pages

- You select all fields by clicking on the Select All button. •
- You can clear all selections by clicking on the Clear All button. •
- Click on the More... button to move to the Options 2 tab and complete what is required there.

Step 3 – Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.

Step 4 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

Description Cards (Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

Description Cards are used to generate web pages that you can use when creating a web site.

For Multiple Vehicles

Step 1 – From the Reports menu, select Description Cards

The Print "Description Cards" screen is displayed and the Vehicles tab is ready for selections to be made.

- As a default all Unsold vehicles will be selected. If you want to change this click on the Clear All button then select the vehicles required with the mouse.
- Enter the Name and phone number of a contact person if required.

Step 2 – Select the Options 1 tab to determine what you want printed on the report and web page.

Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains a tick or a dot will be included.



3 – Select the Options 2 tab to determine what header you want printed on the report.

Using standard word processing skills you can enter a heading for your report in the Custom Heading area. This heading will not be displayed on a web page. The details from your registration screen will be used.

If you would like have additional text on the report it can be entered in the Vendors Comments area. This text will not appear as part of a web page.

Stock No		Entry No		Model	Acquired
1		1	MITSUBISHI	TRITON	07-09-200
2	ABC123	2	PEUGEOT	205	07-09-200
∢ lame of c	contact perso	m			
Contact te	lephone			Select All Date (08-09	Clear All of printing:

USING EASYCARS 2000

Step 4 – Click the **Pre<u>v</u>iew** button to view the document before printing.

Step 5 – Click the **Print** button to print the report.

- Step 6 Click on the Web Pages tab.
 - Leave all defaults as they are unless you are experienced in this area.
- Step 7 Click on the <u>Web</u> button.
 - If any web pages have been created before, a message will be displayed telling you that the files currently in the directory will be deleted and replaced with this. Click <u>Yes</u> to continue.
 - Once finished a message will be displayed informing you of how many files were created. Click *Ok*.

uery	<u>S</u> etup	Pre <u>v</u> iew	<u>W</u> eb	<u>Print</u>	<u>E</u> mail	
Ve <u>h</u> icles	Opti	ons <u>1</u>	Options <u>2</u>	We <u>b</u> pages		
	Style sheet	C:\Users\Public	\EasyCars\Temp	plates\ecSample.c	\$\$	
	HEAD:					
BOD	Y: top of page	C:\Users\Public	\EasyCars\Temp	plates\ecTop.tpl		
BOD,	: end of page	C:\Users\Public	\EasyCars\Temp	olates\ecBottom.tp	I	
	Contact email					
		Picture v	vidth	400 +		
		Picture h	eight	400 +		
Allow full wid	Ith of table for p	picture 🔲		nclude estimated s ndex	elling price in	

Step 8 – View the file in a web browser.

 Use Explore to open the file that was created. The path for this unless you have changed it is: C:\Program Files\EasyCars\Web\

For a Single Vehicle

Step 1 – Search for the vehicle – see Chapter 4 – "**Searching**" section.

Step 2 – When the correct vehicle is displayed, click on the **Cards** button.

The Print "Description Cards" screen is displayed and the Vehicles tab is ready for selections to be made.

- Select Description Card from the box now displayed.
- The vehicle you were working with will now be highlighted in the list.

Step 3 – Select the Options 1 tab to determine what you want printed on the report and web page.

- Use the mouse to select or deselect the fields you want included in the report. Any field that contains
 a tick or a dot will be included.
- Step 4 Select the Options 2 tab to determine what header you want printed on the report.
 - Using standard word processing skills you can enter a heading for your report in the Custom Heading area. This heading will not be displayed on a web page. The details from your registration screen will be used.
 - If you would like have additional text on the report it can be entered in the Vendors Comments area. This text will not appear as part of a web page.
- Step 5 Click the Preview button to view the document before printing.
- **Step 6** Click the **Print** button to print the report.
- Step 7 Click on the Web Pages tab.
 - Leave all defaults as they are unless you are experienced in this area.
- Step 8 Click on the <u>Web</u> button.
 - If any web pages have been created before, a message will be displayed telling you that the files currently in the directory will be deleted and replaced with this. Click <u>Yes</u> to continue.
 - Once finished a message will be displayed informing you of how many files were created. Click Ok.
- Step 9 View the file in a web browser.
 - Use Explore to open the file that was created. The path for this unless you have changed it is:

• C:\Program Files\EasyCars\Web\

Mailing Lists

Step 1 – From the <u>Data Entry</u> menu, select Look Up Lists then select the Mailing List menu.

5dd	Edit	Delete	Lipdate	Betresh	End	Query	Browse	Print	H	Drevious	Dext
		FirstNeme								_	
		LestName	t john						-	-	
		Address								_	
			-					-	-	-	
		Telephone				-	008			-	
		Mobile	×			-					
	E	mail address	-			-				_	
		Keywords	-						-	-	
			Dete:			Stack I	lo Re	je:	Gro	up:	
	L	ast Purchase	07-Sep-20	19		1	A	69H17	Г		
		Vehide	MITSUBIS	H TRITON		- 10				_	
	10	ial Entry Date	07-Sep-20	19		_					
			-								

The "Mailing List Edit" screen will be displayed.

To view the entries in your mailing list you can do so by several options.

• To view all listed in your Mailing List select <u>Browse</u>.

• To view only one listing at a time select either <u>Find</u>, <u>Previous or N</u>ext.

• To filter out particular purchases or vehicles select Query.

For more information regarding this, see Chapter 4 – "**Searching**" section.

• Once you have located a contact you can either edit or delete the entry by selecting the *Edit* or *Delete* button.

All entries in this list are created automatically whilst selling vehicles, provided the option 'Automatically add purchaser details to mailing list' is ticked. This is located in Setup and Options tab. Vehicles sold to other dealers are not added to this list.

Options				×	_
Clients]	_			
Glasses	Web pages	Internet	Other		
General	Display	Stock Entry	Selling		
Automatica	lly transfer Acquisition	Cost to Creditors			
Automatica	lly transfer purchaser	details to mailing list			
	Default Lot/Load F	und Amount	\$0.00 -		
	Default Warranty A	llowance	\$0.00 -		
<u>сл. г</u> .					
proposed t	g a proposal sale, sav rade-in'	e any trade-ins to the sto			
Default REVS CH	neck:				
On Acquisition	O On Di	sposal O	None 💿		
For Consignment	s:				
Transfer to cred	itors at time of acquisi	ion	•		
Dio not transfer (until vehicle is sold		0		
For commission-	basis consignments, c	lefault to Non-registered			
For Consignments.	default to:			IMPOF	<u>RTANT NOTE</u>
Commission-basi			•		
GST Registered	Acquisition Agreeme	ent	0		If entries
Private - Accour	ting 'Stock on Hand'		0		ii entries
Default expense	s) to be added wh	en a new vehicle is	acquired:	Updat	e.
Paid To		Amount Tax Inv	Tax Amount R		-
*					
				⊢	A Messa
<u></u>				•	Click Yes
	οκ ι	Cancel Apply		-	CICK Tes

• If entries are missing from the mailing list, click on date.

- A Message may be displayed.
- Click <u>Yes to continue updating the mailing list</u>.

To Print Mailing Lists / Labels

Step 1 – From the *Mailing List Edit* screen, select the Print button.

The	Print	Mailing	List will	he	display	hav
me	PIIII	wanny	LIST WIII	be	uispia	yeu.

Mailing Li	st Edit											5.6
≜dd	Edit	Delete	Update	Betresh	Find	Quary	Brown	ia Prjet	н	Erevious	Next	1
		FirstName	Mohomme	d								
		LastName	Al Mofethe	ł								
		Address	20 bardes	ley pl						-		
			HOLT				-	ст	2615	-		
		Telephone				_	DOB			-		
		Mobile				-						
		E-mail address	-									
		Keywords.								_		
			Date:			Stock	No:	Rega	Gro	up:		
		Last Purchase	10-Aug-20	19		141		YLN545		_		
		Vehicle	AUDI:A4									
	le	nitiel Entry Dete	10-Aug-20	19								
fiem record												

Step 2 – Check all relevant information boxes for your desired result for printing labels.

Step 3 – Click the **Pre<u>v</u>iew list** or the **Previe**<u>w</u> **labels** button to view the labels and or list before printing.

Step 4 – Click the **Print** <u>list</u> or the **Print** <u>labels</u> button to print the report and or labels.

To Export the Mailing List

Step 1 – From the *Print Mailing List* screen select *Preview List* or *Preview Labels*.

Step 2 – Click on the **File** menu and then select the desired output format, e.g. TEXT, PDF, RTF or EXCEL.

• Enter the path and file name for your export.

Important Note: Always remember the folder that you saved this export to.

Toll Forms

The toll form feature needs to be activated before a user can access it. Activating must be done by a JCS staff on their client software.

Step 1 – Search the vehicle you want to print the toll form for. See Chapter 4 – "Searching" section.

Step 2 – If the correct vehicle is displayed and all details are correct, click on the **Toll Forms** button. The button is located on the top right hand side of the screen.

Screen Shot:

\$	0	III
Quote	Ask Tech a Question	Toll Forms

Step 3 – The Toll Forms box will then be displayed with the details of the current vehicle selected in stock.

Note: Generated data will depend on the status of the vehicle.

Figure 1.1 - Buttons

ar Form <u>R</u> epopulate Form Prey Print blank form					lear every field exce
Toll Notice Number					ils. This information
				always be the	
	T		•		rm – Click this butto
					with the details of th
Details of the person on the	Toll Notice or du	ly authorised person	of ti	selected vehicl	
			•	Preview – Click	this to view the for
				before printing	5.
				Print – Print th	e form.
			-	Print blank for	m – tick this box if yo
				want to print a	•
	-				
Postcode Responsible Party					
Responsible Party C: New owner Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle	Previous owner	Clear and let m	e type details		
Responsible Party C New owner Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Sumame	Previous owner	Clear and let m :	e lype details		
Responsible Party C: New owner Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle	Previous owner	Clear and let m	e type details		
Responsible Party New owner Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Surname Given Name(s)	Previous owner	Clear and let m : :	e type details		
Responsible Party C New owner Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Surname Given Name(s) Company Name (if applicable)	Previous owner	Clear and let m :	e lype details		
Responsible Party C New owner Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Sumame Given Name(s) Company Name (if applicable) ABN/ACN (if applicable)	Previous owner	Clear and let m :	e type details		
Responsible Party New owner Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Sutname Given Name(s) Company Name (if applicable) ABN/ACN (if applicable) Address	Previous owner	Clear and let m :	e type details		
Responsible Party C New owner C Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Surname Given Name(s) Company Name (if applicable) ABN/ACN (if applicable) Address Suburb	Previous owner	Clear and let m : :	e type details		
Responsible Party C New owner C Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Surname Given Name(s) Company Name (if applicable) ABN/ACN (if applicable) Address Suburb State	Previous owner	Clear and let m : :	e type details		
Responsible Party C New owner C Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Surname Given Name(s) Company Name (if applicable) ABN/ACN (if applicable) Address Suburb State Postcode		Clear and let m			
Responsible Party C New owner C Date and time I sold or disposed of the vehicle Summe Given Name(s) Company Name (if applicable) ABN/ACN (if applicable) Address Suburb State Postcode Country					





Chapter

Chapter 8: Bulk Sale and Purchase Options

(Only available to users with Easy Cars 2000)

Pickups (Quick Acquisitions)

Step 1 – From the Data Entry menu, select Bulk Data Entry then select Pickups (Quick Acquisition), then Enter Pickups.

The "Pickups" screen will be displayed with the Data Entry screen ready for input.

Step 2 - Enter the relevant data to bring this vehicle into stock

- The cursor will default into Last/Company field. If the vehicle was brought from a dealer simply start typing their name. Strike the <Tab> key when the correct dealer is highlighted.
- If purchased from private person, hold • the <shift> key and the <Tab> key at the same time. The cursor will move back to

Bulk Pickups Add New Vehicle	New Pickup	Close					
First Name Last/Company Address City			Buyer (A	cquisition salesman) Reference Date Acquired	99-09-2009 <u>*</u>	Group Group How Acquired C	•
Telephone ABN		MD		153B Agreement		waiting i ax w on-registered	
Vehicle Summar	Commission-basi GST Registered Private - accoun	acqn agreement	Print	Invoice provided acquisition registration ys charge Administrati on sale of these vehic ember buyer (Acquisit	n transfer ion ies	e for each vehicle Amount inc GS1 GST Rate GST Amount	\$0.00 + 10.00 % \$0.00 +
Vehicle	Rego	Make	Model	ModelYear	ModeMariant	State	HowAcq

First Name field. Complete the name and address details.

- Note: If the ABN number is not valid an error message will be displayed. Click Cancel to ignore or Retry to correct.
- If vehicles are consignments from other dealers and you have the tick box marked GST Registered agreement, the vehicle will be treated like a purchase when calculating GST records.
- Note: If How Acquired is P for purchase Tax invoice provided will become available for selection.
- If Commission basis is selected and Non-Registered, the buyer of this vehicle will not receive a tax • invoice therefore cannot claim an input credit until they sell the vehicle, ie: "Notional input credit"
- Private-accounting will also be treated like a purchase for GST calculations.
- Acquisition date will default to today's date. If this is not correct type in the correct date.
- Enter How Acquired as either C for consignments or P for purchases
- Enter a unique Reference Number for each pickup (batch number)
- Enter Number of Vehicles to be brought into stock from this supplier.

- Enter the Acquisition Salesman who brought these vehicles.
- Enter the *Group* to which this vehicle belongs to if needed.
- If vehicles need to be transferred (RTA acquisition forms printed) leave the tick box ticked.
- Enter any *Default Expenses* to be added automatically to each vehicle.
- If a *Tax Inv* is provided check the tick box.
- Enter the Amount inc GST of the expense
- The GST rate should be 10%. This will cause the GST Amount to be calculated.

Step 3 – Click the <u>Enter</u> vehicles button.

The "Vehicle Details" screen will be displayed

- Enter all vehicle details
- Acquisition price may be left blank, eg: If vehicle is a real consignment (Commission basis). At time of sale you will be able to enter that amount, which is called net to vendor. <u>See sales.</u>
- Default expenses can be changed for each individual vehicle.
- If more vehicles are to be added click Next.
- When final vehicle has been entered click <u>Add</u> to stock. All vehicles entered in that pick up will automatically be added to the police book.

Save & <u>N</u> ew	Save & Close	Clear <u>D</u> etails	Close			
						Pickup Vehicle
	D <u>e</u> tails	Ľ		Egitras	Ŷ	Options
Acquired	09-09-2009 + -	How C	•	NVIC code	Group	Ŧ
Registration No		Rego Label/ Check Digit		Registration Expiry	- Registration State	· ·
Make	*	Model	•	Model Year	- Model Varian	· ·
Series	v	Body	÷	Colour		Ψ.
Engine No				VIN/Chassis No		
Built Date	2	Compliance /		Cylinders	······································	
Engine Type	· ·	Engine Capacity	÷	Engine Size	··· Transmission	· ·
Doors	0 +		Unleaded Fuel	D	esel Fuel	LPG Fuel
Odometer	0 +	Distance	0 *	Form Type	Buyer	
	No adometer	⊙ Kim	O Miles	Commercial/exempt	2 Tonne or more	Print transfer
Acq Cost inc GST	\$0.00 -	GST	10.00 *	\$ \$0.00	Market Value inc GST	\$0.00 -
Lot Load Fund	\$0.00 -	Warr Allow	\$0.00	Est \$0.00 -	Est Selling Price inc GST	\$0.00 -
	Expense			Amount inc GST	GST Rate 10.00	GST Amount \$0.00

Sales/Invoicing

Step 1 - From the Data Entry menu, select Bulk Data Entry then select Sales/Invoicing

The "Bulk Sales" screen will be displayed with the Sale screen ready for input.

• The cursor will default itself to *First Name* field. Enter the first name here if selling to a private person.

Delete	Setup	Preview list	Print list	Preview	Print	Preview all	I Print all
<u>D</u> erese	gotap	1 To view lies	1 1111 104	110101	1.1111	- Torion an	- This gi
ial <u>e</u> Ir	voice Op	tions Invoice tex	a]				
	1	-					
First N	ame 📔				Phone		ABN:
				-	Phone MD		ABN:
.ast/Comp	pany			•	1		Γ
.ast/Comp				•	MD		ABN:

- If the vehicle is being sold to a Dealer strike the <Tab> key once. Start typing their name in the Last/Company field. Strike the Tab Key once the correct dealer is highlighted.
- Enter the private purchaser's *Last Name* and *Address* details.
- <u>Note</u>: If the ABN number is not valid an error message will be displayed. Click cancel to ignore or <u>R</u>etry to correct.

Step 2 – After entering the buyer's details strike the <Page down> key, the cursor will move to *Stock No*. field.

- Select either the *Stock No*. or the *Registration* number from the lists provided.
- Enter the Sell Price inc GST.
- <u>Note</u>: If this vehicle was sold to a charity or disabled person who qualifies under the Act (Section 38-510) a zero tax rate must be entered

Delete	Setup	Preview	list	Print list	Preview	Erint	Preview	all Print <u>a</u> ll
Gal <u>e</u>	1	1 1						
First	t Name					Phone		- ABN:
Last/Co	ompany a				•	MD		
A	v ddress					Drivers		-
	City					Licence DOB		Direct transfer
	cial				J	0001		1
Stock No	0. 	Registration	Acq 1	Make	Model		Built	Colour
1	-	-						
N. B. D. Co.	Sec.	COT DUL C	OCT A		DOT NO.			
Sell Price			GST Amou			to Vendor		litors Trust A/c
Sell Price	inc GST \$0.00 -	GST Rate (0.00 <u>+</u> %		nt Sellex 0.00 -	GST Net \$0.00 -	to Vendor \$0.00		
Sell Price				0.00 -		\$0.00		
Sell Price	\$0.00 -	0.00 + %		0.00 -	\$0.00	\$0.00		-
Sell Price	\$0.00 -	0.00 + %		0.00 -	\$0.00	\$0.00		
Sell Price	\$0.00 -	0.00 + %		0.00 -	\$0.00	\$0.00		
Sell Price	\$0.00 -	0.00 + %		0.00 -	\$0.00	\$0.00		-
	\$0.00 -	0.00 + %		0.00 -	\$0.00	\$0.00		ntex GST Date F
	\$0.00 -	0.00 + %	\$1	0.00 - Amount in	\$0.00 v	\$0.00	Amount Amou	nt ex GST Date F
•	\$0.00 -	0.00 + %	\$1	0.00 - Amount in	\$0.00 v	\$0.00	Amount Amou	nt ex GST Date F
I I III	\$0.00 - Date	0.00 + 2	\$1	Amount in Amount in cluding GST	\$0.00 - <u>c GST Tax Inv</u> GST Rate 0.00	\$0.00 <u>*</u> BAS GST	Amount Amou	Excluding GST
•	\$0.00 - Date	How Dispose	\$1	0.00 - Amount in	\$0.00 - GST Tax Inv GST Rate 0.00 Form Type	\$0.00 <u>*</u> BAS GST	Amount Amou	nt ex GST Date F
Administr Date Sold 09-09-201	\$0.00 - Date	How Dispose	\$1	Amount in Amount in cluding GST	\$0.00 - GST Tax Inv GST Rate 0.00 Form Type	\$0.00 <u>*</u> BAS GST	Amount Amou	Excluding GST 80.00 Report Date:
Extra Administr	\$0.00 - Date	How Dispose	\$1	Amount in Amount in cluding GST	\$0.00 - GST Tax Inv GST Rate 0.00 Form Type	\$0.00 <u>*</u> BAS GST	Amount Amou	Excluding GST 80.00 Report Date:

in the *GST rate* field. You will not be entitled to an input credit for the purchase of that vehicle (If purchased from an unregistered person). Otherwise leave it as 10%.

- If the vehicle was bought in on a Purchase you can enter or change *Net to Vendor* if needed. (This is the creditors amount or amount to be paid to the consignor). For this amount to be transferred to creditors screen the tick box must be ticked.
- Current expenses will be displayed. Extra expenses can be entered at this time if needed.
- In the extra's field enter an administration fee or extra charge to the buyer. If the field is not available when selling to dealers, click the *Options* tab and make sure the tick box is ticked.
- Date sold will default to today's date, you can change this if required.
- How disposed will automatically default to A for auction. Change this if it is needed
- *Salesman* will default to the last salesman's code used. If left blank no name will be printed on the form 7.

Tip: Consider entering the employee who is completing the sale as a salesman (set too not active) for commission purposes. This will then allow the name to be printed on forms.

- Enter Inspection Rpt number and Report date if needed.
- Odometer now will default to acquisition odometer reading. This can be changed if needed.

Step 3 – Click on the *Save* button or tab to that button and strike the enter key.

- That vehicle is now held in the pending sales list waiting to be printed. Once printed the sale is finalised.
- The data entry screen is reset and ready to enter the next vehicle.

Step 4 – Click on the **Invoice** tab to print Invoices and Forms.

- Selecting the *Print <u>all</u>* button will print all outstanding invoices and forms.
- If only certain vehicles need to be printed, use the mouse to select that vehicle then select <u>Print</u>.
- You may also click back on Sale and enter more vehicles to the pending sales list.



Bulk Receipts

Gelect an invo Dayment:	ice for	[•		a previou r re-alloca			-
)r select a lebtor:	First Name Last/Company Address City			Ţ	<u> </u>	-	MD -	
Date 09-09-2009 불		Cheque No	Total.	Amount \$0.00 -	Banked	* *	Unallocati	ed \$0.00
Stock	Rego	Ou Sold	utstanding Sell Price I		Extras	Trade	Pa	id

Step 1 – From the <u>Data Entry</u> menu, select Bulk Data Entry then select Enter receipts from Debtor.

The "Receipts from Debtors" screen is displayed.

• Select an *Invoice* for payment and/or select a previous receipt for re-allocation or choose a debtor name from the drop down box provided.

• If entering a receipt, adjust receipt date if necessary.

• Add the *Type* of payment. If a cheque then enter the *Cheque number*.

• Enter the *total amount*. The <F2> key will insert total debtors amount automatically.

- If required you can enter the date that it was Banked.
- Tick *Auto allocate* then click allocate button <u>or</u> <Tab> to the button then strike the <Enter> key.

If you do not tick the option to auto allocate you will need to manually enter each amount on individual cars. This may be needed when the debtor is not paying for all cars purchased. Remember to click <u>Save</u> button once amounts have been typed in.

<u>NOTE</u>: By ticking the auto allocate box, once you have selected the receipt number you want, it will then automatically allocate that amount to the **Bulk Receipts Audit Trail** where you can print the receipts.

Viewing Receipts Audit Trail

Step 1 – From the Data Entry menu, select Bulk Data Entry then select Bulk Receipts Audit Trail.



The "Receipts Audit Trail" is displayed.

• All receipts that have been generated can be viewed from here.

• You can also print receipts from that screen by highlighting the car you want a receipt for and clicking on *Print*.

• The receipts print out individually not in bulk. Tip. Once you highlight the receipt you wish to print off, just underneath that it tells you what vehicles are included in that invoice number so you can work out if that's the one you want.

Bulk Payments to Creditors

Step 1 – From the Data Entry menu, select Bulk Data Entry then select Enter Payments to Creditors

ayment: Ir select a First N reditor for ayment: Last/Com		payment for re-alloc	ation:
Ado	tress City		MD
late 09-09-2009 + -	Cheque No	Total Amount \$0.00 ▼	Unallocated \$0.00
Stock Rego	Outstan Acquired	ding Creditors Total Paid	Due Sold

The "Payments to Creditors" screen is displayed.

• Select a *pickup number* for payment and/or select a *previous receipt* for re-allocation or choose a *creditor name* from the drop down box provided.

- Enter or select *Date* of the payment.
- Enter Cheque No. used to make this payment.

• The <F2> function key will automatically transfer total creditor amount as the *Total Amount* of this cheque.

• Selecting the Auto Allocate box will automatically allocate as much of the payment as possible.

If you do not tick the option to auto allocate you will
need to manually enter each amount on individual cars. Remember to click <u>S</u>ave button once

amounts have been typed in.

Bulk Payment/Receipts Audit trail

Step 1 – From the Data Entry menu, select Bulk Data Entry then select Bulk Payments Audit Trail.

The "Bulk Payments Audit" screen will be displayed.

- All payments/receipts will be listed with corresponding allocations to each vehicle and or unallocated amounts.
- To preview or print selected receipts/payments, highlight the record by clicking with mouse or use the arrow keys to select. All corresponding records on that date will be grouped together for preview or print.

- Click *Preview* to see if the information is correct and presented appropriately and when satisfied click on the *Print* button.
- Old records may be deleted by highlighting the payment then clicking the <u>Delete</u> button.
- Corresponding receipts/payments attached to each vehicle <u>will not</u> be removed although the ability to reallocate that amount will be lost. If there is any chance those vehicle purchases or sales could be cancelled do not delete the record.
- Unallocated amounts, due to sale or purchase cancellation are used to calculate debtors or creditors. Therefore deleting those records would give incorrect figures. Only old records should be deleted, eg: sales and purchases which will not be altered.

Chapter

9

Chapter 9: General Information and Hints

Backing Up Your Data

Within the <u>File</u> menu there is an option to **Make a Local Backup**. It copies the data to another location on your hard disk drive or another hard disk drive on your network (if you have one).

A Local Backup is very fast and convenient, and allows for very fast recovery. It is so fast that busy yards should use it each day. It is <u>not</u> used for copying your data to a floppy drive because this routine cannot span across disks, and your database will almost certainly be too large for a single disk.

Making a backup to another location on your hard disk drive may be fast and convenient but it offers limited security in the event of stolen computers, viruses or lightning damage. A backup should be made onto some form of external disk, at the very least, once a week.

Making a backup onto a "zip" disk is fine, provided a second copy of it is kept off the premises.

You can make backups as frequently as you wish.

Ask yourself this... when the big day arrives and you lose all your data (data is the information that you have been gradually accumulating day by day), how much data are you prepared to re-enter or type back into your computer? If you don't mind re-entering one day's work, then you must backup every day. If you don't mind re-entering one week of work then you only need to backup once each week. But think about it... when the big day arrives, you may be in a hurry, much more of a hurry than you are today.

You should also check the Department of Fair Trading regulations in regards to the frequency of the backups and their storage.

IMPORTANT: DO NOT BACKUP OVER THE LAST (MOST RECENT) BACKUP. IN FACT ALWAYS PRESERVE AT LEAST THE LAST SEVEN BACKUPS IN CASE YOU ARE UNKNOWINGLY BACKING UP CORRUPT DATA OVER THE TOP OF GOOD DATA.

Finally, EasyCars makes a "daily" backup once every day, another "weekly" backup once each week and finally a "monthly" backup once each month if you have this option turned on in your setup options. Don't depend upon these backups – remember that they are only local backups on your hard disk and could be destroyed by the same "accident" that caused you to look for a backup copy of your data.

For making permanent external backups you must refer to your <u>Windows Help System</u> and use the facilities provided there.

To make a local backup copy onto another disk drive on your network: -

Step 1 – Click on the <u>F</u>ile menu.

Step 2 – Click on 'Make a local backup copy'.

The save local backup copy window will be displayed.

Step 3 – The "Save as" dialogue box will automatically default to, *Safety* and Backup of xxxxxxxxx.mdb (x being the name of your database), Click on *Save*.

Telephone Support and Program Maintenance

The importance of "Telephone Support and Program Maintenance" cannot be stressed enough. IT IS VITALLY IMPORTANT TO YOU AND YOUR BUSINESS.

What it covers

Firstly, telephone support is to provide you with upgrades. Upgrades will be made available whenever EasyCars is modified, enhanced or it has corrections or "bug fixes". Some major upgrades may incur a charge. To avoid time wasting problems, it is critical that you obtain every upgrade as soon as it is released. Upgrades may be produced as often as once a month. The upgrades are placed on the Internet where they can only be accessed by those dealers who have a current support plan with us.

Secondly, telephone support is to guide you through problems and help you to get the most out of EasyCars 2000. We will guide you through any procedures that you have not yet become familiar with. We will also answer questions about any facet of EasyCars. We will take serious notice of any suggestions that you put forward – and quite possibly modify or enhance EasyCars 2000 as a result. We will also take urgent calls at any time of the day, night, weekends and holidays. Any problem that prevents you from continuing to do your work is considered urgent.

However, telephone support does <u>not</u> provide any other services - such as tuition in the use of Windows, making backups (other than "local" backups from within EasyCars 2000), or diagnosing faulty hardware. The people who supplied your computer provide these services.

Problems, like repairing damaged data, are usually caused by turning the computer off when EasyCars is still "active". This kind of problem is "self inflicted" and therefore chargeable. Repairing damaged data can be a tedious & time-consuming job. It requires the expertise of a programmer and is therefore expensive and cannot be covered by telephone support.

*** IMPORTANT ***

It is essential that the person calling for support is <u>able to sit at the keyboard whilst speaking on the</u> <u>telephone</u>. Service calls are usually impossible; often time consuming and even annoying when a telephone is not available at the keyboard. <u>Please</u> DO NOT call for telephone support until this basic requirement is satisfied.

A "Client Code" is displayed above the main menu. It will be helpful to quote your client code when placing service calls.

During the free period

If you make the effort to read this manual and the help screens, you will find us most grateful and helpful. You will also find the program simpler to use. However, if you cannot find the answer to your problem in this manual, or you simply do not understand the manual, we will be more than happy to assist you.

The cost of Pre-Paid Support

JCS strongly encourages you to take up a pre-paid support arrangement for your own benefit. The cost is advertised on the Jeal Computer Services web site at <u>www.jeal.com.au/easycars</u>. It is invoiced <u>half</u> <u>yearly</u> or <u>yearly</u> in advance. The cost is adjusted periodically in line with C.P.I. adjustments. The benefits include: -

- 24-hrs 7-days telephone support and after hours emergency support.
- All program updates and enhancements are made available to you via the Internet.
- Your suggestions for improvements to EasyCars are given priority.
- Additional special features of EasyCars.

If you subscribe to pre-paid support, you may call for support whenever necessary without incurring further charges. You may also download upgrades from the Internet at any time. We are continuously on call - 24 hours / 7 days, in case you have a problem.

Pay as you go support

If you choose to pay for support calls as each one is required (a credit card is essential) you will find that the cost of each call will very quickly add up to a great deal more than the "up front" subscription.

If you choose, you can pay for support calls with a credit card at the time of calling. If you don't have a subscription, support is only available during business hours. The price for a call in business hours is \$75 (Inc GST for up to 30 minutes).

These charges reflect the costs of continuously developing and upgrading the software as well as maintaining our specialist telephone support staff. If this method of payment satisfies you, please have your credit card details ready when you call, then allow 5 minutes for us to verify your card before you call back.

The Telephone Support Numbers

During our office hours (02) 9623 6403

To call for urgent support outside normal hours use these numbers (in this order):

Our mobile number (try a couple of times) 0412 281 158

If still no answer try 0403 551 559

We are happy to receive calls **after hours** as long as they are **necessary to sort out an urgent problem**. If you have questions of a non-urgent nature, it would be more appropriate to call us during business hours. We will drop some hints (and probably the phone too) if you call at 11.00 pm to order a printer ribbon. Don't laugh - it has happened!

If you call our office after hours with a serious problem - our answering machine will suggest that you call the mobile number first - please call it.

Software Problems

If you have recently installed any new software, ask yourself: has EasyCars 2000 worked correctly since the new software was installed?

Hardware Problems

Before calling us, please do some preliminary checks:

If you have just moved your computer from one office to another, and it no longer works, it will almost certainly be one of the cables are not plugged in correctly (unless you dropped the computer on the way!).

If you have just moved your computer from one yard to another by car, truck or bicycle and it no longer works, it may be that one of the internal cards has come loose from the main board. This type of service call should be directed to the supplier of the computer.

If you have recently changed the location of the printer, ask yourself; has it worked correctly since it was moved? Have the cables been reconnected properly?

If the number keys on the **right hand side** of your keyboard are not printing numbers on the screen, check that the <num lock> light is on (see the indicator lights in the top right corner of your keyboard).

Telephone Support via Internet

Alert us before attempting to activate telephone support. We must prepare a computer in our office before you can connect to it.

Using Remote Admin

A JCS technician can connect to your computer through two methods, Logmein Rescue and Remote Client.

Logmein Rescue:

On your internet browser visit the <u>www.logmein123.com</u> website. You will then be asked to enter a 6-digit pin code. This will be given to you by the JCS technician. When the code is entered, hit connect to technician. A prompt will appear asking if you want to download this file. If the download does not show up, it may be because pop-ups are blocked on your web browsing program. You will need to allow this site to temporarily show pop-ups. Once the prompt appears, if possible *Run* the file, otherwise *Save* it to your desktop. If asked to run again, answer with *Run*. It will connect to the Logmein Rescue Gateway. The JCS technician will begin and will require you to give permission to remotely access your computer. When the prompt asks for your permission, say *Ok*.

Remote Client:

To use remote client to log into your computer, go to the website, <u>www.jeal.com.au</u> and click on the tab which says *Get Help Now*. A prompt will appear asking if you want to download this file. If possible *Run* the file, otherwise *Save* it to your desktop. If asked to run again, answer with *Run*. The JCS technician will advise you to which technician you will be connecting to. Select that technician and then press the start button.

Causes of Modem Problems

Lock Ups

On occasions modems and/or computers can become "electronically confused", for want of better words. In this condition they simply refuse to work at all. Switching them both OFF from the power and then back on again after 5 - 10 seconds will usually reset them back to normal working condition. If this happens frequently, it may mean that the mains power supply is jumping up and down or maybe your electronic wizard is really faulty!

Modem Cable Connections

Make sure that the cable that connects the modem to the telephone socket in the wall is connected properly. **Some modems** have **two** sockets in the back of them - one that goes to the wall socket and is

marked LINE, and the other that is used to connect a handset and is marked TELEPHONE. Do not plug the lead from your wall outlet into the wrong socket in the back of the modem!